
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




PROJECT LOCATION MAP


STOUGHTON, WI


NO SCALE


51


PROJECT LOCATION


LIST OF DRAWINGS


SHEET NO. DRAWING TITLE


PROJECT LOCATION MAP


N


W MAIN STREET


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN
 


A
N


D
 
 
 
S


O
U
T


H
E


R
N
 


R
A
IL


R
O


A
D


E JEFFERSON STREET


F
IF


T
H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


F
O


U
R


T
H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


S
IX


T
H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


SOUTH STREET


8


7


6


5


4


3


2


1


GRADING PLAN - ALTERNATIVE BID NO. 1


SITE AND UTILITY PLAN - ALTERNATIVE BID NO. 1


FOUNDATION PLAN AND SECTIONS - BASE BID


GRADING PLAN - BASE BID


SITE AND UTILITY PLAN - BASE BID


EROSION CONTROL NOTES AND DETAILS


STANDARD NOTES AND SYMBOLS


TITLE SHEET


S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\01_TITLE.dgn user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:15:57 AM


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


JOB NO.


SHEET


1


1040.128


www.strand.com


608-251-8655 fax 


608-251-4843 


Madison, WI 53715 


910 West Wingra Drive 


Strand Associates, Inc.


CONTRACT NO. 5-2020


ROTARY PARK IMPROVEMENTS
FOR THE 


CITY OF STOUGHTON


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
MAY 2020


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







6"


MWEL


GUY


MH


SEPV


SEPC


WELL


WV


CAUTION


2"


6"


IP


 


 


BENCH MARK


SOIL BORING


OBJECTS TO BE REMOVED


CONIFEROUS TREE


DECIDUOUS TREE


LIGHT POLE


EXISTING UTILITY POLE


PAVED ROAD 


GUARD RAIL


FENCE


UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC CABLE


ORIGINAL GROUND IN PROFILE


GAS MAIN


SILT FENCE


CONTROL POINT


GUY WIRE


INLET


EXISTING CONTOUR


CATCH BASIN


FIBER OPTIC


STORM SEWER


SANITARY SEWER


ELECTRIC DUCT


STEAM PIPING


CHILLED WATER SUPPLY


EXISTING CULVERT


BURIED TELEPHONE CABLE PEDESTAL


PERMANENT EASEMENT ON SEWER


PROPERTY IRON


NOTATION FOR COMBUSTIBLE FLUIDS


CASING PIPE


EXISTING CULVERT IN PROFILE


NEW WATER MAIN AND FIRE HYDRANT


WYE BRANCH


6"


MANHOLE


WITH AUXILIARY VALVE


MANHOLE


WETLAND


CILLED WATER RETURN
BUSH


INLET SQUARE


CURB WATER BOX
SECTION CORNER


IRON PIPE


MONITORING WELL


MAIL BOX


SIGN


PROPANE TANK


TELEPHONE POLE


STUMP


SEPTIC


SEPTIC VENT


WELL


FORCE MAIN


TEMPORARY EASEMENT 


PROPERTY LINE AND/OR RIGHT OF WAY


FIRE HYDRANT


WATER VALVE


MANHOLE


TV CABLE 


TELEPHONE


BORE


NEW SANITARY SEWER AND


EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND


STANDARD SYMBOLS


PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK


PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER


PROPOSED GRAVEL SHOULDER


UTILITY CONTACTS


ALLIANT ENERGY - GAS


STOUGHTON UTILITIES - WATER


STOUGHTON UTILITIES - ELECTRICAL


STOUGHTON UTILITIES - SANITARY SEWER


CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS - CABLE


AT&T - TELEPHONE/FIBER OPTIC


(P) (608)-252-2385


ca2624@att.com


CAROL ANASON


(P) (608) 877-7421


BErickson@StoughtonUtilities.com


BRIAN ERICKSON - WASTEWATER SYSTEM SUPERVISOR


CITY OF STOUGHTON - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


(P) (608) 877-8684


BHebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us


BRETT HEBERT - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR


ELEV.DESCRIPTIONBM NO


CITY OF STOUGHTON - PLANNING DEPT.


(P) (608) 873-6619


RJScheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us


RODNEY SCHEEL - PLANNING DIRECTOR


(P) (608) 877-7422


KThompson@StoughtonUtilities.com


KENT THOMPSON - WATER SYSTEM SUPERVISOR


CP NO DESCRIPTION NORTHING EASTING


VERTICAL BENCHMARK TABLE


HORIZONTAL CONTROL TABLE


STREET STRUCTURE SIZE
ELEVATION


RIM/BOC
INVERT


(IN)


DOWNSTREAM SIZE
LENGTH (FT)


SLOPE


DOWNSTREAM


871.25 - -


(P) (608) 877-1650


DanTreinen@alliantenergy.com


DAN TREINEN


(P) (608) 373-7538


david.moldenhauer@charter.com


DAVID MOLDENHAUER


(P) (608) 877-7423


JWeiss@StoughtonUtilities.com


JILL WEISS, P.E. - UTILITIES DIRECTOR


Toll Free (800) 242-8511


Milwaukee Area (414) 259-1181


Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289


www.DiggersHotline.com


(P) (608) 877-7416


SOGrady@StoughtonUtilities.com


SEAN GRADY - UTILITIES OPERATIONS SUPERINTENDENT


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


(P) (608) 877-7425


BSime@StoughtonUtilities.com


BYRCE SIME - ELECTRIC SYSTEM SUPERVISOR


STORM SEWER TABLE (ALTERNATIVE BID NO. 1)


4' DIA. MH 876.30 872.20 28MH SS-1


2'X3' BOX 877.20 873.20 15INL 1.1


2'X3' BOX 876.60 872.75 55INL 1.2


AEW-1 12" AEW - -


12"


12" 6.60%


12" 1.00%


 PARK


ROTARY
3.40%


CP-1 MAG NAIL 425159.61 866374.61


CP-2 MAG NAIL 425241.73 866226.67


XXX.XBM-1


XXXXXXX


XXX.XBM-2


XXXXXXX


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


S
T


A
N


D
A


R
D
 N


O
T


E
S
 A


N
D
 S


Y
M


B
O


L
S


  


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


1040.128


           


ABC


2


S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\02_Standard Notes and Symbols.dgn user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:15:57 AM


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







 


8"-0" MAX


8'-
0" M


AX


8'-
0" M


AX


 


 


6
"


6"


2" (5.1cm)


TO


1" (2.5cm)


6
"


4"


*


10'-0"


3'-
0"


3'-
0"


3'-
0"


3'-
0"


2
'-


0
"


10
"


2
'-


0
"


6"


10
"


CURB BACK EXTENSION


 


EROSION CONTROL NOTES


TYPICAL APPLICATIONS OF SILT FENCE


SILT FENCE AT MEDIAN SURFACE DRAINS


PLAN VIEW


PLAN VIEW


SILT FENCE


ALTERNATE "B"ALTERNATE "A"


SITUATION 1 SITUATION 2


EITHER MAY BE USED.


9. ALTERNATES A AND B ARE EQUAL AND 


OF 1 1/8" X 1 1/8" OAK OR HICKORY.


WITH NETTING SHALL BE A MINIMUM SIZE 


POSTS FOR GEOTEXTILE FABRIC REINFORCED 


OR 2 1/2" X 3 1/2", EXCEPT WOOD 


SHALL BE A MINIMUM SIZE OF 4" DIAMETER, 


MOVEMENT ARE REQUIRED. WOOD POSTS 


OR ANCHORS SUFFICIENT TO RESIST POST 


1.2 LBS/LINEAR FOOT WITHOUT ANCHORS, 


OR "U" TYPE WITH A MINIMUM WEIGHT OF 


8. STEEL POSTS SHALL BE STUDDED "TEE" 


OR EQUIVALENT IS REQUIRED.


HEAVY DUTY NYLON TOP SUPPORT CORD 


MESH SPACING OF 1/4" OR EQUAL. A 


POLYPROPYLENE NETTING WITH A MAXIMUM 


REINFORCED WITH AN INDUSTRIAL 


7. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL BE 


12" C-C.


FENCE WITH STAPLES OR WIRE RINGS AT 


TOP OF GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TO TOP OF 


MAXIMUM MESH SPACING OF 6". SECURE 


GAGE MINIMUM WOVEN WIRE WITH A 


6. WIRE SUPPORT FENCE SHALL BE 14 


TRENCH WITH EXCAVATED SOIL.


FIT TRENCH AND BACKFILL AND COMPACT 


THE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, FOLD MATERIAL TO 


WIDE AND 6" DEEP TO BURY AND ANCHOR 


5. EXCAVATE TRENCH A MINIMUM OF 4" 


PLACE WIRE RINGS ON 12" C-C.


FABRIC 3" OVER THE WIRE AND STAPLE OR 


4. MINIMUM 14 GAGE WIRE REQUIRED, FOLD 


FRAME OR EQUIVALENT AT TOP OF POSTS.


3. CROSS BRACE WITH 2"x4" WOODEN 


STRENGTH AND EFFECTIVENESS.


POINTING UPSLOPE TO MAXIMIZE BOTH 


HORSESHOE SHAPE, WITH THE ENDS 


SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED IN AN ARC OR 


2. WHEN POSSIBLE THE SILT FENCE 


SPECIAL PROVISIONS.


STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND APPLICABLE 


PERTINENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE 


ON THIS DRAWING SHALL CONFORM TO THE 


1. DETAILS OF CONSTRUCTION NOT SHOWN 


NOTES:


ROADWAY ROADWAY ROADWAY


ROADWAYROADWAY


SHOULDER SHOULDER


SHOULDERSHOULDERSHOULDER


INSLOPE INSLOPE


INSLOPE


INSLOPE


INSLOPE


INSLOPE


INSLOPE


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


F
L


O
W


BACKSLOPE


BACKSLOPE


DIKE


DITCH 


DITCH CHECK


DETAIL OF


TYPICAL SECTION


TYPICAL SECTION


FLOW


FLOW 


FL
O


W


** GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SIDE


* 20' FOR NORMAL 10' DITCH


SUPPORT COMPONENTS


WITH ALTERNATE 


GEOTEXTILE FABRIC 


WITH EXCAVATED SOIL


COMPACT TRENCH 


BACKFILL AND 


FABRIC ONLY


GEOTEXTILE


SEE NOTE 8


IN GROUND (MIN.), 


2'-0" DEPTH


LENGTH (MIN.),


4'-0" POST 


OR WOODEN LATH AND NAILS


POSTS WITH WIRE STAPLES 


ATTACH THE FABRIC TO THE 


REQUIRED IN UNSTABLE SOILS


DEPTH OR TIE BACKS MAY BE 


NOTE: ADDITIONAL POST 


RING


FABRIC


NOTE 4


WIRE, SEE 


SUPPORT 


SEE NOTE 7


SUPPORT NETTING, 


REINFORCED WITH 


GEOTEXTILE FABRIC 


SEE NOTE 5


3'' MAX


FOLD 


**


POST


POST


**


MIN.


POST SPACING


M
AX.


M
AX.


M
AX.


M
AX.


3'' MAX


FOLD 


FABRIC


RING


FLOW


NOTE 6


FENCE, SEE 


SUPPORT 


WIRE 


SEE NOTE 5


FL
O


W


WITH EXCAVATED SOIL


COMPACT TRENCH 


BACKFILL AND 


NETTING


SUPPORT 


FLOW


CORD


NYLON 


FABRIC


3'' MAX


FOLD 


SEAM


**


FLOW


TRENCH DETAIL


**


MIN. 18" LONG


ANCHOR STAKE,


ANCHOR


FENCE POST AND 


TIEBACK BETWEEN 


FLOW


SILT FENCE TIE BACK


SEE NOTE 5


SEE NOTE 5


SEE NOTE 5


NOTE 3


SEE 


NOTE 3


SEE 


M
IN
. 


LAP


M
IN
.


M
IN
. 


LAP


M
IN
.


M
IN
.


LAP


M
IN.


M
IN
.


  
 F


LOW


DI
RECTI


ON 
OF


GRADE
EARTH


WIRE OR EQUIVALENT


LARGER DIAMETER


NO. 11 GA. OR


  
AREA


SO
DDED


-12" MIN FOR LOOSE SOILS


MATS ARE BEING USED


-8" MIN WHERE BOTH SOD AND 


-*6" MIN FOR FIRM SOILS


GRADE
EARTH


EARTH 
GRADE


GRADE


EARTH


  FLOW


TRANSVERSE 


SO
D


  
 F


LOW


LONGI
TUDI


NAL 


SOD


         (SEED AND SOD)


AT BEGINNING AND END OF EROSION MAT (SEED AND SOD)


(SOD ONLY)


JUNCTION SLOT


LAP JOINTANCHOR SLOT


TYPICAL STAPLE


DETAIL OF  


(SEED ONLY)


JUNCTION SLOT


SOD


SILT FENCE
STANDARD 1056)


(WDNR TECHNICAL


 


MAT INSTALLATION


EROSION CONTROL
STANDARD 1052)


(WDNR TECHNICAL


PERCENT.


AND 50 FEET ON GRADES EXCEEDING 3 


GRADES UP TO AND INCLUDING 3 PERCENT, 


MINIMUM INTERVALS OF 100 FEET ON 


JUNCTION OR ANCHOR SLOTS SHALL BE AT - 


EROSION MAT OVER SEEDING


FLOW LINE OF THE DITCH.


LONGITUDINALLY OR TRANSVERSELY TO THE 


SOD STRIPS MAY BE PLACED EITHER - 


ALWAYS EQUAL THE SOD WIDTH.


THE WIDTH OF EROSION MAT SHALL - 


CONDITIONS SO PERMIT.


IF THE EXISTING SLOPE AND SOIL 


FLOOD STAKES FOR SOD MAY BE OMITTED - 


OVER SOD.


ONLY JUTE FABRIC WILL BE PERMITTED - 


EROSION MAT OVER SOD


STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.


PAID FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 


EROSION MAT SHALL BE MEASURED AND 6. 


IMPRESSED IN THE SOIL.


EDGES OF THE EROSION MAT SHALL BE 5. 


OF 4 FEET APART.


MATTING SHALL BE STAGGERED A MINIMUM 


JUNCTION SLOTS ON ADJACENT STRIPS OF 4. 


BOTTOM OF V-SHAPED DITCHES. 


LAP JOINTS SHALL NOT BE PLACED IN THE 3. 


PROTECTION AND MATERIAL STRENGTH.


PERMITTED IF THEY PROVIDE EQUIVALENT 


MATERIALS SHOWN HEREON SHALL BE 


VARIATIONS IN THE DIMENSIONS OR 2. 


APPLICABLE SPECIAL PROVISIONS.


STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND THE 


PERTINENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE 


DRAWING SHALL CONFORM TO THE 


AND WORKMANSHIP NOT SHOWN ON THIS 


DETAILS OF CONSTRUCTION, MATERIALS  1. 


DETAIL NOTES:


REQUIRED BY DANE COUNTY


REPLACEABLE FILTER BAG


FLEXSTORM INLET FILTERS TO MEET DANE COUNTY EROSION CONTROL STANDARDS


Installation Instructions:


1. Remove grate from the drainage structure


2. Clean stone and dirt from ledge (lip) of drainage


structure


3. Drop the inlet filter through the clear opening


such that the hangers rest firmly on the lip of the


structure


4. Replace the grate and confirm it is not elevated


more than 1/8"


Maintenance Guidelines:


1. Empty the sediment bag if more than half


filled with sediment and debris


2. Remove the grate, engage the lifting points,


and lift filter from the drainage structure


3. Dispose of sediment and debris as directed


by the Engineer or Maintenance Contract


4. Alternatively, an industrial vacuum can be


used to collect sediment from filter bag


FRAMING


GALVANIZED STEEL 


LOWER HALF OF BAG)


BAG LINER (COVERING 


NON-WOVEN INNER


BAG LAYER


WOVEN OUTER 


(HB) HYBRID FILTER BAG SPECIFICATIONS:


FRAMED INLET PROTECTION


PROTECTION TYPE D MAY BE USED.


EXISTING INLETS OF NON-STANDARD DIMENSIONS, INLET 


INLETS. IF A FRAME SIZE DOES NOT EXIST FOR 


IS REQUIRED FOR INLET PROTECTION TYPE D FOR ALL 


*TEMPORARY VERSION OF FLEXSTORM CATCH-IT BY ADS 


APPROXIMATELY 9-INCHES IN HEIGHT AND 12-FT IN LENGTH.


50-FT INTERVALS AFTER ANY LAND DISTURBANCE. CHECK DAMS SHALL BE


PLACE CLEAR STONE CHECK DAM IN EXISTING DITCH LINE AT APPROXIMATELY21.


    (SEEDING, EROSION MAT PLACEMENT, AND/OR MULCHING).


20.  DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE UNIFORMLY GRADED PRIOR TO RESTORATION


REQUIRE E-MAT (TYPE 1, CLASS B). UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


DISTURBED DITCH AREAS AND AREAS WITH SIDE SLOPES STEEPER THAN 4:119.


UPSTREAM OF EXCAVATED TRENCHES.


WHERE POSSIBLE CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE ACTIVE/TEMPORARY SPOIL PILES18.


IMMINENT/FORECASTED PRECIPITATION.


WITHIN 24 HOURS OF RAINFALL OF 0.5 INCH OR MORE, AND BEFORE


EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL STRUCTURES SHALL BE INSPECTED WEEKLY,17.


OF ONCE PER WEEK AND BEFORE ALL IMMINENT RAINS.


DRIVES, OR PARKING AREAS BY MANUAL OR MECHANICAL SWEEPING A MINIMUM


FINE SEDIMENT ACCUMULATIONS SHALL BE CLEANED FROM STREETS, PRIVATE16.


STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION.


CONFORMANCE WITH THE WDNR CONSERVATION PRACTICEMEASURES IN CONTROL


THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ALL THE EROSION15.


RESOURCES.RESIDENCES/WATER


MULCH OR A TACKING AGENT MAY NEED TO BE UTILIZED TO PROTECT NEARBY


WIND EROSION SHALL BE KEPT TO A MINIMUM DURING CONSTRUCTION. WATERING,14.


BEEN APPROVED BY THE WDNR.


SITE IS STABILIZED WITH 70% VEGETATION AND A NOTICE OF TERMINATION HAS


ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL PRACTICES SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL THE13.


IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR CONSERVATION STANDARD, CODE 1050.


STABILIZATION AFTER OCTOBER 1, SHALL INCLUDE USE OF TYPE B SOIL STABILIZER


SUCH AS SOIL TREATMENT, TEMPORARY SEEDING AND/OR MULCHING. TEMPORARY


DEADLINES, THE SITE MUST BE TREATED WITH TEMPORARY STABILIZATION MEASURES


DAYS, OR WHERE GRADING WORK EXTENDS BEYOND THE PERMANENT SEEDING


FOR ANY DISTURBED AREA THAT REMAINS INACTIVE FOR GREATER THAN 7 WORKING12.


MEASURES MUST BE REPAIRED AND THE WORK REDONE.STABILIZATION 


ANY SOIL EROSION THAT OCCURS AFTER FINAL GRADING AND/OR THE APPLICATION OF11.


SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED.


EVENT SHALL BE CLEANED UP BY THE END OF EACH DAY. FLUSHINGOR A STORM 


ALL OFF-SITE SEDIMENT DEPOSITS OCCURRING AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION WORK10.


WIND.


ALLOWED TO BE CARRIED OFF-SITE BY RUNOFF ORPROPERLY DISPOSED OF AND NOT 


WASTEWATER, TOXIC MATERIALS, OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS) SHALL BEWASTES, 


ALL WASTE AND UNUSED CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS (INCLUDING GARBAGE, DEBRIS, CLEANING9.


ALL MULCH SHALL BE ANCHORED (CRIMPED) IN PLACE.8.


SEEDED.


A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES OF TOPSOIL MUST BE APPLIED TO ALL AREAS TO BE7.


AND MULCHING.


STABILIZATION PRACTICES SUCH AS TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT SEEDINGTREATED WITH 


ANY SOIL STOCKPILED THAT REMAINS FOR MORE THAN 7 DAYS SHALL BE COVERED OR6.


OBTAINING WDNR APPROVAL OF DEWATERING SYSTEM.


AREA PRIOR TO DEWATERING THE STREAM. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR


DISCHARGE FROM GEOTEXTILE BAGS SHALL BE ONTO ESTABLISHED TURF (VEGETATED BUFFER)


WITH STRAW/HAY BALES. SUPPLEMENT DEWATERING SYSTEM WITH POLYMER IF NECESSARY.


SEDIMENTATION TANK FOLLOWED BY GEOTEXTILE BAGS. GEOTEXTILE BAGS SHALL BE LINED


STANDARD 1061. AT A MINIMUM, DEWATERING SYSTEM SHALL CONSIST OF A PORTABLE


FOR ALL DEWATERING OPERATIONS, CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH WDNR TECHNICAL5.


BE FOLLOWED FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THE STONE TRACKING PADS.


SHALL BE PLACED IN LOCATIONS AS REQUIRED. WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1057 SHALL


OF 50-FEET LONG AND 12-INCH DEPTH (3"-6" CLEAR STONE). STONE TRACKING PADS


STONE TRACKING PADS SHALL BE THE FULL WIDTH OF THE EGRESS POINT, A MINIMUM4.


OTHER STANDARD PRACTICES AS NEEDED.


(WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1061), MULCHING (WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1058), OR


PRACTICES SUCH AS DUST CONTROL (WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1068), DEWATERING


WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARDS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND FOLLOWED FOR EROSION CONTROL3.


PROVISIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARDS.


BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  ALL EROSION CONTROL


IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (ECIP) FOR THE OVERALL CONSTRUCTION SITE. ECIP SHALL


THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARING AN EROSION CONTROL3.


ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL PROVISIONS AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AS NECESSARY.


CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW EROSION CONTROL PLAN AND SUPPLEMENT IT WITH2.


LEAST 5 WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO FIELD IMPLEMENTATION.


TO THESE DRAWINGS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO WDNR (ATTN: PETER WOOD) FOR REVIEW AT


THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES.  ANY PROPOSED CHANGES


THESE EROSION CONTROL DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY1.


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


E
R


O
S
IO


N
 C


O
N


T
R


O
L
 N


O
T


E
S
 A


N
D
 D


E
T


A
IL


S


  


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


1040.128


           


ABC


3


S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\03_Erosion Control Notes and Details.dgn user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:15:20 AM


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







GA
S


P
H
.


A
S


P
H
.


ASPH.


#
3


0
0


C
O


N
C
.


4
"


8
"


870


8
7
1 8
7
0


8
7
2


8
7
3


8
7
4


8
7
5


8
7
6


8
7
7


8
7
8


8
7
9


8
8
0


871


872


873


873


872


871


870


869


868


867


866


865


864


870


871


872


873


873


87
2


87
1


87
0


86
9


8
7
3


MH MH


R
E


T
.
 


W
A


L
L


JERRY W KING


0511-081-3848-0


FIRE STATION


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3773-0


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3762-8


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3858-8


S
IX


T
H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


SERVICE


1 1/2-IN WATER


AND GUTTER (TYP.)


30-IN CONCRETE CURB


INSTALLATION (BY OTHERS)


ELECTRICAL SERVICE


PROTECT EXISTING FENCE


12-IN BASE COURSE


SURFACE PAVEMENT OVER 


PAVEMENT AND 1 3/4-IN


WITH 2 1/4-IN BINDER


RESTORE PAVEMENT AREA


REMOVE EXISTING TREE


ONCE BUILDING IS PLACED ON THE FOUNDATION.


SANITARY SEWER LATERAL TO BUILDING HOOKUPS


MANUFACTURER. CONNECT WATER SERVICE AND


LOCATION WITH PREFABRICATED RESTROOM


LATERAL INTO FLOOR CUTOUT. COORDINATE


EXTEND WATER SERVICE AND SANITARY SEWER


N


0 FEET 5025


SEE SHEET 6 FOR FOUNDATION PLAN AND SECTIONS


FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION (FFE) = 873.25


PREFABRICATED RESTROOM BUILDING AS SPECIFIED


CONCRETE SIDEWALK


NEW 4-IN


AT CONNECTION = 19 FEET)


LATERAL (APPROXIMATE DEPTH


4-IN SANITARY SEWER


BENCH PADS (TYP.)


PROTECT EXISTING 


  DETENTION BASIN


EXISTING STORMWATER


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:16:00 AMS:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\04_Site and Utility Plan - Base Bid.dgn


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


4
           


ABC


S
IT


E
 A


N
D
 U


T
IL
IT


Y
 P


L
A


N
 -
 B


A
S


E
 B


ID


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


  


1040.128


REMOVE EXISTING TREE


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







GA
S


P
H
.


A
S


P
H
.


ASPH.


#
3


0
0


C
O


N
C
.


4
"


8
"


870


8
7
1 8
7
0


8
7
2


8
7
3


8
7
4


8
7
5


8
7
6


8
7
7


8
7
8


8
7
9


8
8
0


871


872


873


873


872


871


870


869


868


867


866


865


864


870


871


872


873


873


87
2


87
1


87
0


86
9


8
7
3


MH MH


R
E


T
.
 


W
A


L
L


JERRY W KING


0511-081-3848-0


FIRE STATION


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3773-0


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3762-8


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3858-8


873.72


873.75


873.08


873.05


871.70


871.70


873.31


873.37


S
IX


T
H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


MATCH


MATCH


MATCH


MATCH


MATCH


MATCH


873.25


873.15


873.08


873.01


873.08


873.16


873.20


873.30


MATCH


MATCH


873.30


1.
5


%


1.
5


%


1.
0


%


1.5%


1.
5


%


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:16:00 AMS:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\05_Grading Plan - Base Bid.dgn


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


5
           


ABC


G
R


A
D
IN


G
 P


L
A


N
 -
 B


A
S


E
 B


ID


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


  


1040.128


NO. 1 SLOPES AND GRADING LIMITS.


SEE SHEET 8 FOR ALTERNATE BID


7
.0


%


N


0 FEET 5025


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







12
'-


6
"


11
"


10
'-


8
"


11
"


8
"


6
'-


6
•


"
8
"


2
'-


9
•


"


2'-6" 4'-6•" 1'-6" 2'-6"4'-6•"1'-6"2'-3"


19'-4"


11" 11"17'-6"


8"5'-11•"6"3'-3"6"5'-11•"8"


2
'-


6
"


4
'-


8
•


"
2
'-


6
"


2
'-


9
•


"


2'-6"4'-6•"1'-6"2'-3"1'-6"4'-6•"2'-6"


5
'-


0
"


8
"


5
'-


8
"


8"5'-11•"6"3'-3"6"5'-11•"8"


17'-6"


17'-6"


2
'-


0
"


2'-0"


3"2'-7•"1'-0"2'-10•"3"1'-0"1'-6"1'-0"3"2'-10•"1'-0"2'-7•"3"


3
"


2
'-


11
•


"
1'
-
0
"


3
'-


2
Œ


"
3
"


3
'-


0
"


FRONT VIEW OF FOOTING


RIGHT VIEW OF FOOTING


FOOTING LAYOUT


SECTION THRU FOOTINGS


#4 BARS @ 12" O.C.


(3) #4 BARS


#4 BAR @ 12" O.C.


#4 L BAR @ 12" O.C.


FLOOR DRAIN CUTOUT


PLUMBING BLOCKOUT


ELECTRICAL BLOCKOUT


ELECTRICAL SERVICE


4" DIA. BLOCKOUT FOR


BENEATH FOUNDATION


1 1/2" WATER SERVICEBENEATH FOUNDATION


4" SANITARY LATERAL


PRECAST RESTROOM FLOOR SLAB


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:16:01 AMS:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\06_Foundation Plan and Sections - Base Bid.dgn


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


6
           


ABC


F
O


U
N


D
A


T
IO


N
 A


N
D
 S


L
A


B
 P


L
A


N
 A


N
D
 S


E
C


T
IO


N
S


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


  


1040.128


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







GA
S


P
H
.


A
S


P
H
.


ASPH.


#
3


0
0


C
O


N
C
.


4
"


8
"


870


8
7
1 8
7
0


8
7
2


8
7
3


8
7
4


8
7
5


8
7
6


8
7
7


8
7
8


8
7
9


8
8
0


871


872


873


873


872


871


870


869


868


867


866


865


864


870


871


872


873


873


87
2


87
1


87
0


86
9


8
7
3


MH MH


R
E


T
.
 


W
A


L
L


JERRY W KING


0511-081-3848-0


FIRE STATION


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3773-0


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3762-8


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3858-8


B
A


S
E
 


B
ID


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:16:02 AMS:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\07_Site and Utility Plan - Bid Alternative No. 1.dgn


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


7
           


ABC


S
IT


E
 A


N
D
 U


T
IL


T
IY
 P


L
A


N
 -
 A


L
T


E
R


N
A


T
IV


E
 B


ID
 N


O
. 
1


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


  


1040.128


  DETENTION BASIN


EXISTING STORMWATER


CONCRETE SIDEWALK


NEW 4-IN


BENCH PADS (TYP.)


PROTECT EXISTING 


PERFORATED PIPE


REMOVE EXISTING 12-INCH


GUTTER (TYP.)


NEW 30-IN CURB AND


IE 12" NW 871.25


AEW-1


IE 12" SE 872.20


IE 12" N 872.20


IE 12" W 872.20


RIM ELEV. 876.3\


SS MH-1, 4' DIA.


IE 12" S 873.20


BOC ELEV. 877.2\


INL 1.1, 2'X3' BOX


SEWER @ 6.6%


15 LF - 12" STORM


IE 12" E 872.75


BOC ELEV. 876.6\


INL 1.12 2'X3' BOX


SEWER @ 1.0%


55 LF - 12" STORM


A
L


T
E


R
N


A
T


E
 


B
ID
 


N
O
.
 
1


N


0 FEET 5025


REMOVE EXISTING TREE


DETECTABLE WARNING FIELDS


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION







GA
S


P
H
.


A
S


P
H
.


ASPH.


#
3


0
0


C
O


N
C
.


4
"


8
"


870


8
7
1 8
7
0


8
7
2


8
7
3


8
7
4


8
7
5


8
7
6


8
7
7


8
7
8


8
7
9


8
8
0


871


872


873


873


872


871


870


869


868


867


866


865


864


870


871


872


873


873


87
2


87
1


87
0


86
9


8
7
3


MH MH


R
E


T
.
 


W
A


L
L


JERRY W KING


0511-081-3848-0


FIRE STATION


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3773-0


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3762-8


CITY OF STOUGHTON


0511-081-3858-8


879.77


879.55


879.00


880.08


879.71


879.67


880.82


880.64


880.70


876.98


877.03


2
0
'
R


2
0
'
R


3
5
'
R


B
A


S
E
 


B
ID


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O
.


R
E


V
IS


IO
N


S
D


A
T


E
:


user: AndrewC 5/5/2020 8:16:03 AMS:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\128\Drawings\CAD\Micros\PLAN\08_Grading Plan - Bid Alternative No. 1.dgn


A S S O C I A T E S 
®


8
           


ABC


S
IT


E
 A


N
D
 U


T
IL


T
IY
 P


L
A


N
 -
 A


L
T


E
R


N
A


T
IV


E
 B


ID
 N


O
. 
1


R
O


T
A


R
Y
 P


A
R


K
 I


M
P


R
O


V
E


M
E


N
T


S


C
IT


Y
 O


F
 S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E
 C


O
U


N
T


Y
, 


W
IS


C
O


N
S
IN


  


1040.128


  DETENTION BASIN


EXISTING STORMWATER


A
L


T
E


R
N


A
T


E
 


B
ID
 


N
O
.
 
1


1.
5


%


1
.
5


%


1.
5


%


1.
5


%


1.
5


%


8.0%


8.0%


8.0
%


PAD (TYP.)


LEVEL LANDING


MATCH


MATCH


879.84 879.77


MATCH-BOC


880.00


MATCH-BOC


MATCH-BOC


MATCH-BOC


879.93


879.00


BOC


879.80


879.60


879.53


879.60


879.61


878.13


878.06


878.20


878.13


1.
5


%


1.5%


MATCH


MATCH-BOC


MATCH-BOC


876.14


876.07


876.21


876.14


874.07


874.00


874.07


874.14


873.85


873.80


873.72


0.6%


MATCH


877.35


BOC


877.20


BOC


MATCH


N


0 FEET 5025


OWNER REVIEW 5.5.20 - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION





		01_TITLE

		02_Standard Notes and Symbols

		03_Erosion Control Notes and Details

		04_Site and Utility Plan - Base Bid

		05_Grading Plan - Base Bid

		06_Foundation Plan and Sections - Base Bid

		07_Site and Utility Plan - Bid Alternative No. 1

		08_Grading Plan - Bid Alternative No. 1






MINUTES PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Monday, April 6 2020 at 4:00 pm  
Online - https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/905174485  
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Mayor Tim Swadley and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guests: John Montgomery 
 
Call to Order-Meeting called to order at 4:05 
 
Approval of Minutes from February 18, 2020 and February 25, 2020  
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by, Heili seconded by Caravello  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Communication –Mayor reminded members we need committee requests 
 
March & April Director’s Report  
Director Glynn reviewed & answered questions regarding March and April 2020 Directors Report. 
Awaiting land value report from Blake George, discussed Pokémon players, bike racks for parks on 
order, discussion regarding youth center having virtual conversations, discussed Bjion Park and RDA 
site lighting. 
 
COVID-19 Impacts-discussed impacts to program and community garden  
 
River Park Budget-Discussed revised CIP Budget for 2021, discussed presentation for council. 
 
Mandt Park Master Plan (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Will request phasing plan explanation of rational from MSA for next meeting. 
 
Park Design Guidelines (Discussion)  
Director Glynn reviewed research regarding Park Design standards. Will bring back narratives and 
additional concepts at a future meeting. 
 
Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Municipal Dam Program Grant application by the 
Parks & Recreation Director (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to approve Wisconsin DNR Municipal Dam Program Grant application as presented by, Heili, 
Caravello seconded by Hirsch 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, Federal 
Land and Water Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application by the 
Parks & Recreation Director for Yahara Riverfront Development Project. (Discussion & Possible 
Action)  
Motion to approve WI DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, Federal Land and Water 
Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant as presented by, Caravello seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Kettle Park West Parkland Dedication (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to approve the KPW Parkland Dedication with the expectation that Phase 3 parkland trail system 
does not end there by, Hirsch seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Future Agenda Items  
Mandt Park Master Plan, Park Design Guidelines, grant applications and approvals, Bjion Park 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by, Heili seconded by Caravelloi 
Motion carried unanimously at 6:20 








Due to its file size, the draft of the Mandt Park Master Plan will need to be downloaded separately. It 
can be found at the link below: 


https://s3.amazonaws.com/city_docs/09360012_DRAFT_Mandt%20Park%20Master%20Plan%
20Report_3.11.2020.pdf  








 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, April 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
This will be a virtual meeting. You can join the meeting using the information 
below: 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/948920349 
 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3311 
 
Access Code: 948-920-349 
 
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Tim Riley, Tim Swadley 
 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
Council Members 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from April 6, 2020 
 
3 Communication  
 Riverfront Development & Whitewater Park Update  
 Rotary Park Improvements Update 
 Park Impact Fee Study Update    
 
Item #   OLD BUSINESS  
4   Mandt Park Master Plan Draft (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5   Election of a Chair (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
6   Election of a Vice Chair (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
7   Troll Beach 2020 Season (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
8   Future Agenda Items    
     
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/948920349

tel:+18722403311,,948920349






Troll Beach Risk Assessment for Opening 


Physical Distancing Modifications  


- Place lines/spots on the ground at the entrance that are six feet apart.  
- Place lines under the shade structure for sitting areas.  
- Do not use the inflatable play structures since they are an area of congregation. 
- Place physical distancing signs at the entrance and on guard stands. 
- Lifeguards would be responsible for physical distancing of swimmers in the water and the 


supervisor would be responsible for swimmers out of the water.   
- We would add physical distancing to our rules. This would be added by putting a disclaimer on 


our online registration system, front-desk worker would remind customers at the time of check-
in, any patron not adhering to physical distancing requirements would be removed from the 
beach with no refund.  


- The physical distancing rule would need to be covered at our pre-season training program.  
- An announcement would be played every 30 minutes over the PA system to remind patrons of 


social distancing.  


Adhering to Maximum Gathering Requirements 


- Pre-sell admission tickets online utilizing our software system and no season pass sales. This will 
eliminate walk-up customers.  


- We would need to cancel all group reservations.  
- The Badger Bounce Back program limits 50 people during phase II. We would require nine staff 


to operate the beach, so we would need to limit entrance to 41 customers. My recommendation 
would be to run three 1.5 hour shifts.  


Cleaning and Disinfection Practices 


- CDC guidance is to clean and disinfect restrooms regularly with a requirement of once per day. 
Other high touch areas should be cleaned regularly as well. The restrooms are currently cleaned 
once per day. We don’t have the capacity to clean more than that without adding a custodial 
position. It would be my recommendation to clean them after every shift if we are limited to 41 
customers, so that the next shift of customers knew the restrooms were disinfected.  


- An inventory of high contact areas would be done and a checklist would be created with these 
items and times for cleaning and disinfection. This checklist would be signed off by the 
supervisor each day and turned in with the attendance sheets to the Parks & Recreation 
Department office.  


- Custodial supplies are normally acquired through the City’s custodial supply orders. There are 
options to procure items through Amazon and local retailers if needed.  


- Staff would need to be trained prior to the season on how to properly clean and disinfect. 
- Wipes or sanitization solution would need to be placed at each lifeguard stand, so they could 


disinfect during their rotations. 
- Hand sanitizer would be provided to customers as they enter the beach.  
- The restrooms would be cleaned and disinfected every shift.  


PPE 







Troll Beach Risk Assessment for Opening 


- All staff would be required to wear masks including lifeguards. We would need to provide the 
masks as they would be a requirement to work.  


- PPE for cleaning and disinfecting would need to include an apron or gown, mask, face shield, 
and gloves.  


- Current recommendations for recues include the closest lifeguard rescuing the person from the 
water while another lifeguard puts on PPE to perform CPR.  


- The use of PPE would need to be added to our preseason training.  


Staff Capacity 


- Troll Beach requires a supervisor, six lifeguards, and a front-desk worker under normal 
conditions. An additional maintenance/physical distancing enforcer position would be needed to 
keep the beach safe. This is a recommendation from many experts during national conference 
calls. The position would disinfect high contact areas and clean and disinfect the restrooms.  


- The surface area of the water requires the amount of lifeguards we have on duty.  
- If multiple lifeguards become infected with COVID-19, we would be forced to close. Lifeguards 


undergo 40 hours of training to become certified. We wouldn’t be able to handle more than 2-3 
lifeguards from becoming infected without a disruption of service.  


- If the supervisor becomes infected, we may be able to move full-time staff into that capacity if 
our other services are not operating.  


- There is no high-risk population amongst our staff at Troll Beach, so we would not have to 
modify based on this criterion.  


- Emergency contact information for staff is provided during their onboarding for the season, so 
we would have up-to-date contact information. 


Troll Beach Specific Modifications 


- Contact information is collected during the online sales process. This could be used for contact 
tracing in the event of an outbreak.  


- Temperature checks for staff and patrons has been advised against by our insurance provider.  
- Lifeguards take their breaks in the lifeguard office. Breaks would be relocated to the party room.  
- The lifeguard office houses the supervisor desk and front-desk. The supervisor desk would be 


moved to be six feet away from the front-desk.  
- We would not sell concessions this summer and that room could be used as an emergency room 


to isolate someone who fell ill while visiting the beach.  
- We would not sell concessions this summer since concession workers would count against the 


maximum gathering number. Customers are allowed to bring in food and drinks with no alcohol 
or glass allowed.  


- Sneeze guards are not needed for the front-desk worker since the window can be partially 
closed.  


Equity and Inclusion  


- Our current policy for disadvantaged populations visiting Troll Beach is to provide two ten visit 
punch cards for free or a half price season pass. We would need to reserve space for this 
population and would require a curb side registration at City Hall. The number of reserved spots 







Troll Beach Risk Assessment for Opening 


would need to be determined by the Parks & Recreation Committee as there would be a 
financial impact.  


- The reserved spots would be communicated through appropriate channels such as the youth 
center, JFF, and school social workers.  


- No modifications would be needed where ADA requirements would need to be addressed. 
- Anyone without internet service, would be able to call the Parks & Recreation Department office 


to reserve a space.  
- We could open up pre-sale windows to city residents only and then after a designated time 


open up to township and other non-residents.  


Mitigation Strategy 


- We would have the necessary information for contact tracing. In the event we were notified by 
public health that someone visited the beach who was infected, we would notify any customers 
who were exposed.  


- Additionally, we would need to have any staff who was exposed tested before they could return 
to work.  


Communications  


- We have a group schedule with contact information for their supervisors. Additionally, we 
would utilize social media and our email database for any closures.  


- This would be handle by parks and recreation department full-time staff.  


Fiscal Impact 


The fiscal impact of these modifications are under the assumption that the beach can open under phase 
II of the Badger Bounce Back program. We would offer three shifts of customers, every 1.5 hour to 
maximize attendance. These also include no rain dates where we typically have 10 per 68-day season. 
The only scenario where we may reach our budgeted outcome would be to increase entrance fees by $5 
and we would need to sell out attendance for the entire season.  


Outcome Projections    
    
100% Attendance    
Scenario Revenue Expenses Outcome 
Budgeted  $  70,000   $  55,872   $   14,128  


No Rate Increase 
68 Day Season  $  41,820   $  64,930   $ (23,110) 
50 Day Season  $  30,750   $  51,720   $ (20,970) 
35 Day Season  $  21,525   $  40,280   $ (18,755) 


$2.50 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  62,696   $  64,930   $   (2,234) 
50 Day Season  $  46,100   $  51,720   $   (5,620) 
35 Day Season  $  32,270   $  40,280   $   (8,010) 


$5.00 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  83,640   $  64,930   $   18,710  
50 Day Season  $  61,500   $  51,720   $      9,780  







Troll Beach Risk Assessment for Opening 


35 Day Season  $  43,050   $  40,280   $      2,770  
    
80% Attendance    
Scenario Revenue Expenses Outcome 
Budgeted  $  70,000   $  55,872   $   14,128  


No Rate Increase 
68 Day Season  $  33,320   $  64,930   $ (31,610) 
50 Day Season  $  24,500   $  51,720   $ (27,220) 
35 Day Season  $  17,150   $  40,280   $ (23,130) 


$2.50 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  49,980   $  64,930   $ (14,950) 
50 Day Season  $  36,750   $  51,720   $ (14,970) 
35 Day Season  $  25,725   $  40,280   $ (14,555) 


$5.00 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  66,640   $  64,930   $      1,710  
50 Day Season  $  49,000   $  51,720   $   (2,720) 
35 Day Season  $  34,300   $  40,280   $   (5,980) 
    
60% Attendance    
Scenario Revenue Expenses Outcome 
Budgeted  $  70,000   $  55,872   $   14,128  


No Rate Increase 
68 Day Season  $  25,160   $  64,930   $ (39,770) 
50 Day Season  $  18,500   $  51,720   $ (33,220) 
35 Day Season  $  12,950   $  40,280   $ (27,330) 


$2.50 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  37,740   $  64,930   $ (27,190) 
50 Day Season  $  27,750   $  51,720   $ (23,970) 
35 Day Season  $  19,425   $  40,280   $ (20,855) 


$5.00 Increase 
68 Day Season  $  50,320   $  64,930   $ (14,610) 
50 Day Season  $  37,000   $  51,720   $ (14,720) 
35 Day Season  $  25,900   $  40,280   $ (14,380) 


 







Facility Modifications
Floor Marking Taps 110$        https://www.creativesafetysupply.com/stand
Social Distancing Signs 116$        https://www.creativesafetysupply.com/please
Box Fans 40$          


Cleaning/PPE Supplies
Fogger?
Gloves 100$        
Masks 350$        https://www.originalwatermen.com/lifeguard
Face Shields 60$          
Aprons
Wipes 300$        Bleach solution with spray bottles at each gua      
Hand Sanitizers 400$        Doudrins Distilling


Total 1,476$    


Additional Maitenance Person/Social Distancing Enforcer


$12/hour  or $12.92/hour loaded 
5.5 hour days


June 13 Start Date 68 Day Season $4,832
July 1 Start Date 50 Day Season $3,553
July 15 Start Date 35 Day Season $2,487


Total Extra Costs
June 13 Start 6,308$     
July 1 Start 5,029$     
July 15 Start 3,963$     







-here-with-feet-icon-inline-printed-floor-marking-tape/
e-keep-your-distance-a-frame-sign/


d/face-masks/ow-masksingle-guard.html


       ard stand and in the office.







Revenue Projections


Phase I - Dane Forward 250 Normal Capacity 25% capacity


Customers/Shift Shifts - 1.5 hours Number of Possible Customers
54 3 162


Per Day Revenue Projections
Fee 123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)
$5 fee (current average rate) 810$                                                          648$                                                     
$7.50 fee ($2.50 rate increase) 1,215$                                                      972$                                                     
$10 fee ($5 rate increase) 1,620$                                                      1,296$                                                  


Season Revenue Projections
Start Dates Season Length (Days) Proposed Fee
June 13 Start Date 68 $5 fee (current average rate)
July 1 Start Date 50 $5 fee (current average rate)
July 15 Start Date 35 $5 fee (current average rate)
June 13 Start Date 68 $7.50 fee ($2.50 rate increase)
July 1 Start Date 50 $7.50 fee ($2.50 rate increase)
July 15 Start Date 35 $7.50 fee ($2.50 rate increase)
June 13 Start Date 68 $10 fee ($5 rate increase)
July 1 Start Date 50 $10 fee ($5 rate increase)
July 15 Start Date 35 $10 fee ($5 rate increase)


Attendance
Season Length 162 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)
68 Day Season 8364 6691.2
50 Day Season 6150 4920
35 Day Season 3936 3148.8


Reduced Attendance Capicity, $70,000 Revenue (Budget Number)
Season Length 123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)
68 Day Season $8.37 $10.46
50 Day Season $11.38 $14.23
35 Day Season $17.78 $22.23


2020 Budget 70,000$                                                    


Revenue Deficit - 68 Day Season
123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)


Current Rate (14,920)$                                                   (25,936)$                                              
$2.50 Increase 12,620$                                                    (3,904)$                                                
$5 increase 40,160$                                                    18,128$                                               


Revenue Deficit - 50 Day Season







123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)
Current Rate (29,500)$                                                   (37,600)$                                              
$2.50 Increase (9,250)$                                                     (21,400)$                                              
$5 increase 11,000$                                                    (5,200)$                                                


Revenue Deficit - 35 Day Season
123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold)


Current Rate (41,650)$                                                   (47,320)$                                              
$2.50 Increase (27,475)$                                                   (35,980)$                                              
$5 increase (13,300)$                                                   (24,640)$                                              


These projections do not include rain out dates. We average about 10 rain days per year. 







74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
486$                                                          
729$                                                          
972$                                                          


123 Paying Customers (100% sold) 98 Paying Customers (80% sold) 74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
55,080$                                                    44,064$                                               33,048$                                               
40,500$                                                    32,400$                                               24,300$                                               
28,350$                                                    22,680$                                               17,010$                                               
82,620$                                                    66,096$                                               49,572$                                               
60,750$                                                    48,600$                                               36,450$                                               
42,525$                                                    34,020$                                               25,515$                                               


110,160$                                                  88,128$                                               66,096$                                               
81,000$                                                    64,800$                                               48,600$                                               
56,700$                                                    45,360$                                               34,020$                                               


74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
5018.4


3690
2361.6


74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
$13.95
$18.97
$29.64


74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
(36,952)$                                                   
(20,428)$                                                   


(3,904)$                                                     


What the entrance fee would need to be to hit our revenue 
number that is budgeted.


How far off we would be from our budget with a full 68 day 
season.







74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
(45,700)$                                                   
(33,550)$                                                   
(21,400)$                                                   


74 Paying Customers (60% sold)
(52,990)$                                                   
(44,485)$                                                   
(35,980)$                                                   


How far off we would be from our budget with a 50 day 
season.


How far off we would be from our budget with a 35 day 
season.







          







Direct Expense Projections


Budgeted Expenses
68 50 35


WAGES - TROLL BEACH 38,121$  29,353$        21,729$        
EMPOYESS BENEFITS - TROLL BEACH 5,251$     4,043$          2,993$          
EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES - TROLL BEACH 8,000$     6,160$          4,560$          
MISC EXPENSES - TROLL BEACH 500$        385$             285$             
TRANSFER TO SINKING FUND - TROLL BEACH 4,000$     4,000$          4,000$          
Subtotal 55,872$  43,941$        33,567$        


Maitenance Start-Up Expenses
Pump Rental $1,000
New Sand $400
Water $2,000
Subtotal $3,400


Additional Undbudgeted Expenses due to COVID-19


Floor Marking Taps 110$        
Social Distancing Signs 116$        
Box Fans 40$          
Fogger 2,500$     
Gloves 100$        
Masks 350$        
Face Shields 60$          
Aprons 250$        
Wipes 300$        
Hand Sanitizers 400$        
Subtotal 4,226$     62.15$          


Additional Staff Season Day
June 13 Start Date 68 Day Season $4,832 $71.06
July 1 Start Date 50 Day Season $3,553 $71.06
July 15 Start Date 35 Day Season $2,487 $71.06


Total Expenses
68 Day Season 68,330$            
50 Day Season 55,120$            
35 Day Season 43,680$            


Season Length







Work Days % of Regular Work Days
78 100%
60 77%
45 57%


10 work days required for training, and pre-season prep







Phase 1 Impact


Revenue Loss Per Day
100% 80% 60%


Phase I Projected Revenue 810$          648$        486$         
Budgeted Revenue/Day 1,030$       


(220)$         (382)$       (544)$        


Additional Cost Per Day
Social Distancing/Maitenance Position 71$            
Additional PPE & Supplies (based on 68 day season) 62$            


Per Day Outcome (353)$         (515)$       (677)$        


Phase 2 Impact


Revenue Loss Per Day
100% 80% 60%


Phase I Projected Revenue 1,160$       928$        696$         
Budgeted Revenue/Day 1,030$       


130$          (102)$       (334)$        


Additional Cost Per Day
Social Distancing/Maitenance Position 71$            
Additional PPE & Supplies (based on 68 day season) 62$            


Per Day Outcome (3)$             (235)$       (467)$        


Budget Implications Not Opening


Closed Scenario
Total Budgeted Direct Expenses 59,272$    
Total Budgeted Revenues 70,000$    
Outcome 10,728$    


Full Season under Phase I Scenario
68 Day Season under Phase I (35,020)$   
Budgeted Outcome 10,728$    
Outcome (45,748)$   


July 1 Phase II Scenario
July 1 Phase II (17 Phase I, 51 Phase II) (11,696)$   
Budgeted Outcome 10,728$    
Outcome (22,424)$   


All outcomes are based on 80% attendance figures. This is due to rain dates affecting an average of 10 days  


Attendance


Attendance


  
      


 
          


  
      


 
         


 


By not opening the Cit       


If the entire season wa          
our budget by $45,748


If the season started un        
II, we would be off our   







1208


                    per year.


Based on three, 1.5 hour shifts and our regular rates of $4 for 
resident child, $5 resident adult and non-resident child, and 
$6 non-resident adult. Troll Beach capacity is 250 and the 
reduced capacity limit would be 54 people not including staff. 


Based on two, 2.25 hour shifts and our regular rates of $4 for 
resident child, $5 resident adult and non-resident child, and 
$6 non-resident adult. Troll Beach capacity is 250 and the 
reduced capacity limit would be 116 people not including 
staff. 


  ty would minimize the loss at $10,728


   as under Phase I, we would be off on 
   8


 nder Phase I and transitioned to Phase 
     r budget by $22,424





		Troll Beach Risk Assesment

		COVID-19 Budget Updated 5-19-20

		Additional Costs

		Revenue Projections

		Expense Projections

		Summary








Yahara Riverfront Development 


Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 


 


May 15, 2020 


 


City of Stoughton 


Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 


  







Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 3 


Benefit-Cost Analysis ................................................................................................................................ 3 


Background ............................................................................................................................................... 3 


Baseline and Alternative Scenarios ............................................................................................................... 4 


Baseline Scenario ...................................................................................................................................... 4 


Alternative Scenario .................................................................................................................................. 4 


Baseline Costs ............................................................................................................................................... 5 


Operations and Maintenance ................................................................................................................... 5 


Project Costs ................................................................................................................................................. 5 


Construction Costs .................................................................................................................................... 5 


Operations and Maintenance ................................................................................................................... 6 


Project Benefits ............................................................................................................................................. 6 


Parkland Increase ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Safety ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 


Economic Competitiveness ....................................................................................................................... 7 


Quality of Life ............................................................................................................................................ 7 


Property Value Increase ............................................................................................................................ 8 


Flood Control ............................................................................................................................................ 8 


Environmental Benefits ............................................................................................................................. 8 


Overall Project Benefits ................................................................................................................................ 9 


 


  







Executive Summary  
 


Benefit-Cost Analysis  
Benefit-Cost Analysis (BCA) provides a method for monetizing the social value of a project, that is, its 
associated costs and benefits. A feature of BCA involves determining the incremental effect of the 
project which is its improvement with respect to a baseline level of performance (based on forecasts or 
a “business-as usual’ level of investment). Incremental costs and benefits are tracked over the project 
planning horizon and discounted to reveal their respective present values so that they may be 
reasonably compared to the upfront investment. Results from BCAs include: 


1. Net Present Value (NPV) defined as the difference between present value benefits and costs; 
and 


2. Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) and defined as the ratio of present value benefits to costs. 


Projects for which NPV is greater than zero and BCR is greater than one indicated worthy projects. While 
projects with larger BCR and NPV indicate a relatively larger level of worthiness, they have different 
implications for total impact. BCR reflects the return on investment (as a percentage above the 
breakeven point); NPV determines the total value of a project to society. 


This document outlines the costs and benefits for the Yahara Riverfront Development project to satisfy 
the requirements for the Better Utilizing Infrastructure to Leverage Development (BUILD) grant. The 
analysis 0onsidered the costs and benefits that would accumulate over a 30-year timeframe through the 
year 2050.  


 


Background 
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project activates the benefits of the Yahara River in Southern 
Wisconsin. The Project includes many improvements that provide a multitude of benefits. The 
centerpiece to the Yahara Riverfront Development project is a whitewater venue in downtown 
Stoughton, which can be created by the removal of the Stoughton Dam. The BUILD grant funding is 
being requested for the Yahara Riverfront Development Project, which includes: 


• Redeveloping the riverfront in a property owned by the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority. 
This includes the creation of 1.5 acres of parkland, shoreline restoration, pedestrian trail and 
trail amenities, improved public access to the river, and a pedestrian bridge connecting the site 
to Mandt Park.  


• Redeveloping the riverfront at Mandt Park. This includes the removal of Mandt Parkway that 
runs parallel to the river, shoreline restoration and naturalization, looped pedestrian trail 
system, one side of the pedestrian bridge that connects the park to the redevelopment site, and 
parking. 


• The removal of the Stoughton dam and improvements to the area. These improvements include 
the creation of Wisconsin’s first in-stream whitewater park including a standing wave for river 
surfing, the filling of the headrace and tailrace areas to create pedestrian plazas and viewing 
areas, canoe and kayak launches, pedestrian trails, and pedestrian underpass at Fourth Street. 







• Restoration and remediation of the Stoughton Millpond. The lowering of the waterway due to 
dam removal will cause a natural channelization of the Yahara River. 3.3 acres of land will be 
exposed and new parkland will be created. The soils will be remediated and native vegetation 
will be planted. A pedestrian trail will connect Water Street to the whitewater park area.  


 


Recreational trails include “aquatic or water activities,” according to U.S. Code, Title 23. Highways, 
Chapter 2. OTHER HIGHWAYS, Section 206 Recreational trails program.  


The Yahara Riverfront Development Project is a critical step to enhance the Rock River National Water 
Trail and the regional Lower Yahara River Trail. The creation of the recreational whitewater amenities 
will provide a highlight for both trail systems and create a regional destination for outdoor recreation.  


Baseline and Alternative Scenarios  
 


Baseline Scenario 
The Baseline Scenario assumes that the Yahara Riverfront Development Project is not implemented. It 
assumes the Stoughton Dam in its current configuration is left in place.  


Under this scenario, the dam continues to present a safety hazard because boaters and people who 
accidentally fall in the water may get drawn into water flow through the dam and risk drowning or 
injury. The dam will continue to restrict flow of water through the Yahara watershed chain of lakes, 
which has experienced major flooding twice in the last 12 years. The dam will continue to require 
ongoing average maintenance costs of $61,400.  


The millpond will continue to collect sediment, diminish fish habitat and spawning grounds, and cover 
land that could be converted to parkland.  


Southern Wisconsin would also forgo the economic impact benefits, losing out on millions of dollars in 
spending that would otherwise be brought into the region. Southern Wisconsin falls behind in the “war 
for talent,” losing workforce to other cities that made investments in quality-of-life amenities. And 
existing residents of Southern Wisconsin would lose out on the quality of life amenities themselves, with 
fewer outdoor recreation opportunities, less exposure to nature, and poorer water quality.  


 


Alternative Scenario 
The Alternative Scenario assumes that the Yahara Riverfront Project is implemented. It assumes that the 
Stoughton Dam is removed and replaced with a whitewater park that includes a five drop crest features 
for novice paddlers and a standing wave for surfing, fish passage, canoe and kayak launches, a multi-use 
pedestrian trail linking the area to the regional Lower Yahara Trail. Dam removal will increase water flow 
and reduce the risk of flooding.  


Under the alternative scenario the millpond will be replaced with a river connected to fish spawning 
grounds. Soil on the newly exposed riverbank will be remediated of contamination and native plantings 







will be placed in the area creating 3.3 acres of parkland and an unsafe and aging pedestrian bridge will 
be replaced. 


The alternative scenario includes creation of a 1.5-acre riverfront park in front of the downtown 
redevelopment site, enhancing property values and increasing appeal of the area to developers. In 
addition, Mandt Park, across the river from the redevelopment area, will be improved with shoreline 
restoration and naturalization, new parking areas, and a multi-use pedestrian trail loop that will 
connect, via a new pedestrian bridge over the river, to the downtown riverfront and regional trail 
system. 


 


Baseline Costs 
Operations and Maintenance  
The baseline scenario of maintaining the existing dam and millpond, requires regular maintenance. 
Approximately every 10 years the dam requires an inspection and required reconstruction. Staffing of 
dam operations is required on an ongoing basis. Mandt Park maintenance requires filling cracks in paved 
areas. The pedestrian bridge requires inspection every two years.  


These costs were projected over the 30-year project period assuming 2.0% annual inflation, then 
discounted at 7% to determine Net Present Value. 


The Net Present Value of baseline O&M is $1,018,694. 


 


Project Costs 
Construction Costs 
This section outlines the costs to remove the dam and construct the whitewater improvements, 
restoration and remediation, park improvements, and a trail network including pedestrian bridges. Table 
1 provides a breakdown of these costs: 


Table 1: Construction Costs  


Phase I Improvements  
Solar Trail Lighting  $       43,383  
Trail Amenities  $       12,000  
Trails  $     197,481  
Pedestrian Bridge  $     546,368  
Native Plantings  $       25,875  
Riverbank Restoration  $     243,340  
     Subtotal  $  1,025,064  
  
Phase II Improvements  
Restoration & Remediation  $     425,000  
Dam Removal  $     562,021  







Whitewater Improvements $   1,397,978 
Whitewater Trails, Underpass, Plazas, Water St Trail  $  1,480,996  
     Subtotal   $  3,865,995  
  
Phase III Improvements  
Mandt Park Improvements   $  1,927,000  
Jefferson St Pedestrian Bridge  $     498,420  
     Subtotal   $  2,425,420  
  
Total  $  7,316,479  


 


Operations and Maintenance 
The project will require ongoing staffing and bridge inspection. These annual costs were projected over 
the 30-year project period assuming 2.0% annual inflation, then discounted at 7% to determine Net 
Present Value. 


The Net Present Value of project O&M is $174,893. 


Project Benefits 
Various benefits are expected from the Yahara Riverfront Development Project. Those benefits and 
methodology used to quantify the benefits of each category are detailed below. The benefits were 
quantified in accordance with the BUILD application guidelines to complete a formal Benefit-Cost 
Analysis (BCA). The projects benefits fall into several categories, including parkland increase, safety, 
economic competitiveness, quality of life, and property value increase. An Excel spreadsheet model was 
prepared to develop quantitative and monetized values for the benefits of the Yahara Riverfront 
Development Project.  


Parkland Increase 
The Yahara Riverfront Development will increase parkland available to residents of Stoughton and 
beyond by 4.8 acres. According to the 2020 City of Stoughton Park Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land 
Dedication, and Public Facility Needs Assessment parkland value per acre is $197,277. Full details of the 
study can be found as Attachment A.  


Table 2: Parkland Value  


 Year 1 - 2021 Year 2 - 2022 Year 3 – 2023 
Parkland Acres Added 0.00 1.50 3.30 
Parkland Value $0 $295,916 $651,014 


 


Average Park Value per acre $197,277 
NPV Avoided Safety Costs 7% $789,885 


Source: City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Park Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication and Public Facility 
Needs Assessment, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, 2020. 







Safety 
The alternative scenario includes removing the Stoughton Dam. The Stoughton Dam was responsible for 
a near drowning in 2018, and the next dam downstream of the Stoughton Dam, the Dunkirk Dam, was 
responsible for a drowning in 1996. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources provided the City 
of Stoughton a directive letter in 2020 that the Stoughton Dam could be removed to improve public 
safety. Full details of dam incidents can be found as Attachment B.  


Table 3: Stoughton Dam  


Fatality Rate per year 0.05 
Fatality Cost $9,400,000 
NPV Avoided Safety Costs 7% $5,832,249 


 


Economic Competitiveness 
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project supports the economic competitiveness of Southern 
Wisconsin in two significant ways. It will fuel the growth of the regional and state economy by adding 
millions of dollars of visitor spending, and it helps address the region’s need to attract and retain a 
workforce to grow its economy.  


The economic benefits associated with the Yahara Riverfront Development project used data developed 
through the University of Wisconsin-Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study 
(September 2018).  This study focused on direct spending, estimating visitation and visitor spending 
from kayakers within 30, 60 and 120 minutes of Stoughton. Within three hours of Stoughton, there is a 
total population of nearly 6 million with estimates of this including nearly 434,000 kayakers and over 1 
million canoeing enthusiast.  


Based on recent studies that examined 10 other whitewater parks across the US, the study estimated an 
average of $68 per day spent on expenses including food, lodging, automotive, recreational equipment, 
clothing and supplies. Using the 60-minute radius, and an assumption of 82,000 kayakers visiting the 
Stoughton whitewater park once per year, the study estimated an additional $5.6 million spent 
annually.  This NPV of the economic benefits of the project are estimated at $85.3 million.  Full details of 
the economic impact study can be found as Attachment C. 


Table 4: Economic Benefits – 30 Years  


NPV Economic Benefit 7% $85,349,225 
 


Source: University of Wisconsin-Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study (September 
2018) 


 


Quality of Life  
The health benefits of outdoor recreation and activities are well documented. Among the benefits are 
the “sunshine vitamin,” aka Vitamin D; more exercise, especially for children; happier people, notably 
when their exercise takes place near nature; and improved concentration, as noted in “Last Child in the 
Woods” by Richard Louv. 







There are many quality-of-life benefits that are difficult to quantify. This analysis focused on health care 
costs savings related to increase physical activity generated by the project. A recent study by the 
America Heart Association estimates that getting the recommended dose of daily physical activity saves 
a person $2,500 on health care costs annually. This means that each day of physical activity equates to 
$6.85 in health care costs saving. Based on user projections generated through the University of 
Wisconsin-Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study, it is estimated that 82,000 users 
engage in the active recreation options available in this project. 


 


82,000 users/year ÷ 365 day/year = 224.66 users/day  


224.66 users/day x $6.85 per/user/day = $1,538.92 in health care savings/day  


$1,538.92 health care savings/day x 365 days/year = $561,644 health care savings/year.  


 


Based on these calculations it was determined that the NPV of the quality of life benefits is 
approximately $7.0 million.   


 


Property Value Increase 
Properties adjacent to parks and greenspace typically have higher values because they provide ready 
access to outdoor amenities. The Impact of Parks on Property Values: A Review of the Empirical 
Evidence (2001) estimated that proximity to parks increased property values an average of 20%. Full 
details of this study can be found as Attachment D.  


Stoughton’s Tax Increment District #8 Plan (July 2018) estimates an added value of $47,459,000 from 
buildout of the concept plan for the TID. The TID Plan did not factor parkland enhancements from the 
more recently prepared Yahara Waterfront Redevelopment plan (Alternative Scenario) in its estimates 
of additional assessed value. The Alternative Scenario would increase the TID estimated value by an 
estimated 20%, or $9,492,000. Full details of the TIP Plan can be found as Attachment E.  


 


Flood Control  
The removal of the Stoughton Dam will cause the waterway to lower 2.6 feet in the millpond area. This 
will cause an additional 61,000 cubic yards of flood storage in the area. Additionally, the Stoughton Dam 
constricts flow in the Yahara River. The removal of the dam will create a freer flowing system with no 
constriction. In 2018, Dane County experienced record rainfalls which caused subsequent flooding. Dane 
County officials estimated the damage at $154 million. 


 


Environmental Benefits 
The Yahara Riverfront Development will improve the health of the Yahara River. The shoreline 
naturalization will mitigate runoff into the river, the removal of the dam and whitewater improvements 







will improve water quality. The whitewater amenities also provide for fish passage where fish can now 
reach new spawning grounds. 


Overall Project Benefits 
The Yahara Riverfront Development project has a wide range of benefits that encompass parkland 
increase, safety, economic competitiveness, quality of life, and increased property value benefits. This 
analysis endeavored to calculate the quantitative benefits the project will have on the region over the 
next thirty years. Below are the listed tabulated benefits and benefit cost ratios. 


 


Table 5: Benefit Cost Ratio 


NPV Avoided Safety Costs 7% $5,832,249 
NPV Economic Benefits 7% $85,349,225 
NPV Quality of Life Benefits 7% $6,969,461 
NPV Parkland Added Value Benefits $789,885 
NPV Alternative Scenario O&M Costs $179,843 
NPV Flood Control Benefits  
NPV Environmental Benefits 7%  
  
Totals  
NPV at 7% $99,120,664 
Initial Project Cost $7,316,479 
NPV of O&M Costs @ 7% $179,843 
Total Project Costs $7,496,322 
Cost-Benefit Ratio @ 7% 13.22 


 





		Executive Summary

		Benefit-Cost Analysis

		Background



		Baseline and Alternative Scenarios

		Baseline Scenario

		Alternative Scenario



		Baseline Costs

		Operations and Maintenance



		Project Costs

		Construction Costs

		Operations and Maintenance



		Project Benefits

		Parkland Increase

		Safety

		Economic Competitiveness

		Quality of Life

		Property Value Increase

		Flood Control

		Environmental Benefits



		Overall Project Benefits






1 
 


Yahara Riverfront Development Project 


BUILD Grant Application  
 


May 15, 2020 


 


City of Stoughton 


Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 


  







2 
 


Table of Contents 
1. Project Description .................................................................................................................................... 4 


Project History .......................................................................................................................................... 5 


Plan Alignment ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


2. Project Location ........................................................................................................................................ 8 


All Sites ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 


Redevelopment Area ................................................................................................................................ 9 


Mandt Park.............................................................................................................................................. 10 


Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park ........................................................................................................ 11 


Stoughton Millpond ................................................................................................................................ 12 


Water Trail .............................................................................................................................................. 13 


Regional Trail........................................................................................................................................... 14 


3. Project Parties ......................................................................................................................................... 15 


4. Grant Funds, Sources, and Use of Project Funding ................................................................................. 16 


5. Merit Criteria ........................................................................................................................................... 17 


Primary Criteria ....................................................................................................................................... 17 


Safety .................................................................................................................................................. 17 


State of Good Repair ........................................................................................................................... 17 


Economic Competitiveness ................................................................................................................. 18 


Environmental Sustainability. ............................................................................................................. 19 


Quality of Life ...................................................................................................................................... 19 


Secondary Criteria ................................................................................................................................... 20 


Innovation ........................................................................................................................................... 20 


Partnership .......................................................................................................................................... 20 


6. Project Readiness .................................................................................................................................... 21 


Project Phases ......................................................................................................................................... 21 


Phase I ................................................................................................................................................. 21 


Phase II ................................................................................................................................................ 23 


Phase III ............................................................................................................................................... 25 


Demonstrates Feasibility of Expending Funds ........................................................................................ 26 


Cost Estimates ......................................................................................................................................... 26 


Technical Feasibility ................................................................................................................................ 27 


Environmental Approvals ........................................................................................................................ 27 







3 
 


Phase I ................................................................................................................................................. 27 


Phase II ................................................................................................................................................ 28 


Phase III ............................................................................................................................................... 28 


Public Participation ................................................................................................................................. 29 


7. Benefit-Cost Analysis............................................................................................................................... 29 


Baseline Scenario .................................................................................................................................... 29 


Alternative Scenario ................................................................................................................................ 29 


Parkland Increase ................................................................................................................................ 30 


Safety .................................................................................................................................................. 30 


Economic Competitiveness ................................................................................................................. 30 


Quality of Life ...................................................................................................................................... 31 


Property Value Increase ...................................................................................................................... 31 


Flood Control ...................................................................................................................................... 31 


Environmental Benefits ....................................................................................................................... 32 


 


  







4 
 


1. Project Description  
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project includes many different components along the Yahara River 
in a half mile stretch near downtown Stoughton, WI. These improvements will include the removal of 
the Stoughton dam, which will be replaced with a standing wave and five drop crests that provide 
recreational whitewater amenities. This aspect will also include improved fish passage, better canoe and 
kayak launches, trails, signage, pedestrian bridges, and parking.  


Recreational trails include “aquatic or water activities,” according to U.S. Code, Title 23. Highways, 
Chapter 2. OTHER HIGHWAYS, Section 206 Recreational trails program.  


The Yahara Riverfront Development Project is a critical step to enhance the Rock River National Water 
Trail and the regional Lower Yahara River Trail. The creation of the recreational whitewater amenities 
will provide a highlight for both trail systems and create a regional destination for outdoor recreation.  


In addition to the Stoughton Dam site, there are three other sites within the project. These include 
Mandt Park, Redevelopment Area, and the Stoughton Millpond. The entire project area is located within 
a quarter mile of U.S. Highway 51 and less than 10 miles from Interstate 39/90.  


• Mandt Park is located adjacent and downstream of the Stoughton Dam. It is owned by the City 
of Stoughton. It is a community park that is 33.20 acres in size. Existing amenities include an ice 
arena, fair grounds, aquatic center, pickleball complex, and a skate park. Mandt Parkway also 
currently goes through the park, including a section that runs parallel to the river. 
Improvements at Mandt Park include removing the section of Mandt Parkway that runs parallel 
to the Yahara River, shoreline restoration and naturalization, creation of two new parking areas, 
and a one mile looped multi-use pedestrian trail system within the park. The park and newly 
created looped trail system will connect to a new pedestrian bridge with the other section 
connecting to the Redevelopment Area. 
 


• The Redevelopment Area is located on the opposite side of the river from Mandt Park and is 
9.21 acres in size. It is owned by the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority. Historical use for the 
site was manufacturing which housed Mandt Wagon Works. The buildings on the site have 
been demoed and it is planned to be a residential development. Improvements in this area 
include a multi-use pedestrian trail, trail lighting, shoreline restoration, and native landscaping. 
It is also the home to one side of the pedestrian bridge which will connect the area to Mandt 
Park. The multi-use pedestrian trail will link the area to the regional Lower Yahara River Trail.  
 
The City of Stoughton and Stoughton Redevelopment Authority and the City of Stoughton 
agreed to a memorandum of understanding in April 2020 whereas the City of Stoughton is 
responsible for the engineering and construction for the shoreline restoration, multi-use 
pedestrian trail, and pedestrian bridge. In return the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority will 
transfer a 100-foot tract of land adjacent to the river for $1. This will create a public park on the 
site of approximately 1.5 acres in addition to new public access to the river for fisherman.  
 


• The Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park Area is located to the west of the Redevelopment Area 
and Mandt Park. Both the Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park Area are owned by the City of 
Stoughton. The area also includes the spillway and tailrace area, Fourth Street bridge, and the 







5 
 


powerhouse for the dam. These are also all owned by the City of Stoughton. The powerhouse 
for the dam is a registered local landmark and is scheduled to be redeveloped as well. Riverside 
Park is classified as a mini park and is 1.36 acres.  
 
Improvements in this area will include removing the Stoughton Dam and creating recreational 
whitewater amenities. The whitewater amenities will include a standing wave for surfing and 
five drop crest features for novice paddlers. The standing wave will be the only one of its kind in 
the Midwest. The headrace and tailrace for the dam will be filled in to create public pedestrian 
plazas and viewing areas. Other improvements will include canoe and kayak launches, access 
points for fishing, multi-use pedestrian trail that will link this area to the Redevelopment Area, 
the Millpond Area, and the regional Lower Yahara Trail. An underpass will be created utilizing 
one of the Fourth Street bridge’s box culverts.   
 


• The Millpond Area is directly upstream of the Stoughton Dam Area. Current conditions include 
industry on the north side of the millpond and Veterans Park on the south side of the millpond. 
Water is often stagnant, causing poor water quality and fish habitat.  
 
Sediment in the millpond was sampled and tested according to Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources standards in 2019. The sediment was found to be contaminated and will 
need to be remediated. The water levels in the millpond will drop 2.6 feet with the dam 
removal causing 3.3 acres of sediment to be exposed. This sediment, now soil, will be 
remediated by spreading out any concentrated areas and covered with clean topsoil. Native 
vegetation will be planted and the bank will be protected by riprap. The City of Stoughton owns 
the flowage rights to the dam, so any exposed areas of the millpond will become City of 
Stoughton property; thus, the 3.3 acres will become parkland. Other improvements will include 
a multi-use pedestrian trail connecting from Water Street to the Stoughton Dam Area. At the 
far northern boundary of the Millpond Area is a pedestrian bridge that needs to be replaced. 
The Jefferson Street Pedestrian Bridge Rehabilitation Study estimates that the bridge was 
installed in the 1930s (the specific date is unknown, but aerial photography from 1937 shows 
the bridge). The new bridge will be in the same location.  
 


Project History   
The roots of the project can be traced back to the City of Stoughton’s Comprehensive Parks and Open 
Space Plan 2014-2018. Public input for the plan developed goals for the preservation and enhancement 
of shorelines and waterways for public use. Management within the City of Stoughton Parks 
Department started looking for ways to reach this goal.  This became public knowledge and a citizen 
came forward in November 2016 with the idea of creating whitewater amenities like she had seen in 
Iowa. Department staff investigated the possibility over the next 12 months. Staff came to the 
conclusion that it was worthwhile to explore further and the City of Stoughton hired Recreation 
Engineering and Planning from Boulder, CO in January 2018 to complete a concept plan for the park. 


Recreation Engineering and Planning completed the concept plan and presented it to the public in May 
2018. The concept plan called for keeping the Stoughton dam in place and a series of crest drops south 
of the dam creating an artificial channel. The public presentation was attended by 200 people, with 







6 
 


individuals traveling as far away as the Chicago area. During this same time, the Stoughton 
Redevelopment Authority was having a difficult time finding a developer for their property. Members of 
the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority decided to use the whitewater improvements, trails, and other 
recreation improvements to market their property. Due to the newfound public support and importance 
to the Redevelopment Authority, the project was scheduled to move forward.  


Due to the complexity of the project, a steering committee was formed over the course of the summer 
in 2018. The steering committee, tasked with developing the best project and making crucial decisions, 
is comprised of local and regional stakeholders including representatives from the business community. 
During the summer of 2018 there were two major events that influenced the steering committee’s 
decision-making: a. Dane County experienced record flooding causing $154 million in damage, and b. a 
kayaker nearly drowned at the Stoughton dam.  Over the next year the steering committee hosted 
experts to assist them in making future decisions.  


In May 2018, Recreation Engineering and Planning was hired to complete a preliminary design or 60% 
engineering documents. The steering committee made the decision to move forward with a dam 
removal design option to make the project safer and improve flood conditions. During this same time 
there was coordination between the project and Dane County Land & Water Resources Department as 
they were developing a plan to remove sediment from the Yahara River to improve flow. The 
preliminary design for the whitewater amenities was completed in January 2020 and the updated plan 
was presented to the public in February. Over 100 people attended the presentation and support for the 
project is still strong.   


The project has had success in acquiring state grants to fund many of the improvements. In 2018 the 
Stoughton Redevelopment Authority obtained a Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation Idle 
Sites Grant. The grant provides $500,000 that can be used towards trail development and shoreline 
restoration for the redevelopment area and the pedestrian bridge that connects the redevelopment 
area to Mandt Park. The City of Stoughton was awarded a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
Stewardship Fund Grant in the amount of $168,979 in 2019. The grant provides funding for shoreline 
restoration and trail development in the redevelopment area.  


Plan Alignment  
It is important to note how well this project aligns with state, regional, local plans for outdoor 
recreation. Below is list of goals from the applicable plans. 


• Wisconsin Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan - 2019-2023  
o Goal 1 – Boost Participation  


 Objective – Increase the economic, social, and public health benefits resulting 
from residents’ and out-of-state visitors’ participation in outdoor recreation in 
Wisconsin.  


 Desired Actions - Expand efforts among federal, state, county, and local 
governments to coordinate and collaborate on providing recreation 
opportunities that leverage the unique features and facilities available at their 
lands and waters. 
 


• Dane County Parks and Open Space Plan - 2018-2023  







7 
 


o Goal 5 – Protect lakes, rivers and streams, including shorelines, wetlands, high 
infiltration areas and associated vegetative buffers to maintain high water quality, 
manage water quantity, and sustain water-related recreation throughout Dane County. 
 


• City of Stoughton Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan – 2018-2023 
o Goal 1.2.4: Promote bicycle and pedestrian facilities throughout Stoughton and the 


surrounding area.  
 Objective A – Improve local route connectivity through the area to parks, 


conservancies, schools, local businesses and regional trails 
o Goal 1.2.7: Promote water recreation throughout the community.  


 Objective A – Utilize riverfront parks for potential water based recreational 
improvements.  
 


 







8 
 


2. Project Location 
All Sites 
The four sites included in the Yahara Riverfront Development Project are located within a half mile 
stretch of the Yahara River near downtown Stoughton.  


 







9 
 


Redevelopment Area  
The Redevelopment Area is located downstream of the Stoughton Dam and on the north side of the 
Yahara River facing Mandt Park.  


 


 


  







10 
 


Mandt Park 
Mandt Park is located downstream of the Stoughton Dam and on the south side of the Yahara River 
facing the Redevelopment Area.  


  


   







11 
 


Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park   
The Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park are in the heart of the project area and located on Fourth Street. 
They are less than 1200 feet south of Main Street which is also U.S. Highway 51. 


 


  







12 
 


Stoughton Millpond 
The Stoughton Millpond is located directly upstream of the Stoughton Dam. The Jefferson Street 
pedestrian bridge is located to the northern edge of the millpond.  


 


 







13 
 


Water Trail  
The Yahara River is a tributary of the Rock River. The project location is part of the Rock River National 
Water Trail.  


 







14 
 


Regional Trail 
The project entails a connection of the project site to the Lower Yahara River Trail. The Lower Yahara 
River Trail is a regional multi-use pedestrian trail system that connects Madison, McFarland, and 
Stoughton. 


  







15 
 


3. Project Parties 
A steering committee for the project was formed in 2018. Members of the steering committee serve 
from a variety of backgrounds, including Stoughton City Council, Dane County Board, Dane County 
Parks, Madison Sports Commission, Stoughton Redevelopment Authority, local contractors, and 
business owners. Other members include end-users such as fishermen, and paddling and biking 
enthusiasts.  


The project has a high-level of support, both locally and regionally. Project support letters have been 
received from the following partners. Many of these letters came unsolicited. The letters are included as 
Attachment A.  


 


Congressional & State Offices 


• Tammy Baldwin, U.S. Senate 
• Mark Pocan, U.S. Congress 
• Mark Miller, Wisconsin Senate 
• Gary Hebl, Wisconsin Legislature 


Local Government Units 


• County of Dane 
• City of Stoughton 
• City of Madison  


Businesses 


• Stoughton Trailers 
• Curt Vaughn Brink LLC  
• Rutabaga Paddlesports  
• Rock Realty  
• Stoughton Hospital  
• McFarland State Bank 
• PUPS Unleashed  
• Midwest Mortgage 


Other Organizations 


• Madison Sports Commission  
• Community Foundation of Madison  
• Stoughton Redevelopment Authority  
• Sustainable Stoughton 
• Wisconsin River Alliance  
• Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 
• Rock River Alliance 
• Friends of Badfish Creek 







16 
 


4. Grant Funds, Sources, and Use of Project Funding  
This section outlines the funding sources to complete the Yahara Riverfront Development Project. The 
City of Stoughton has been successful in acquiring state grants to fund a portion of the project and 
submitted other state grant applications that are currently pending. The cost share is under 80% due to 
expending some acquired state grant funding in 2020 and being ineligible to use as matching funds for 
the BUILD grant. 


For a complete breakdown of the budget see Attachment B BUILD Grant Budget Summary.  


 


 


 


BUILD Grant Percentage Allocations  


BUILD Grant – 77% 


State Grants – 19% 


Local Public Support – 4%   


Project Funds by Source


BUILD Grant State Grants Local Public







17 
 


5. Merit Criteria  
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project aligns with the Primary and Secondary Criteria outlined 
below.  


Primary Criteria 
Safety 
Multiple lives are lost annually at dams on America’s waterways. People are often unaware of the 
dangers, or they underestimate their risk of becoming a victim to one. There was an incident in 2018 
where a kayaker was sucked under the Stoughton dam. She was fortunate to have survived, but it shows 
a glaring public safety issue with the dam. In 1996, Matthew Judd was not as fortunate as he tried to 
rescue a friend at the Dunkirk dam, the dam directly downstream of the Stoughton dam, and he 
drowned. The Association of State Dam Safety Officials reports that there were 75 incidents and 57 
deaths attributed to dams in 2019.  


The safety issue is addressed by the Yahara Riverfront Development Project, which calls for the removal 
of the Stoughton Dam. The outcome will replace the dam with a standing wave whitewater feature and 
novice channel to the south that provides a series of smaller drops, spaced out over a longer stretch of 
river. These structures eliminate any dangerous currents.  


State of Good Repair 
The project contributes to the overall resilience of the region by mitigating future flooding. This is done 
through the removal of the dam, the lowering of the waterway, and improving flow capacity. The 
waterway is of significant importance to the region as it is a constriction point for the Yahara Watershed. 
In 2018 Dane County experienced historic rains and subsequent flooding which caused over $154 million 
in damage. In response to the flooding, Dane County created a task force to mitigate flooding. The 
project location was identified as a constriction point and is included as phase four of the plan.  







18 
 


 


The Jefferson Street pedestrian bridge was constructed in the 1930s. The bridge was inspected by the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources in 2018 and many significant issues were found. Issues 
included multiple areas of corrosion and areas where the concrete was cracking. The pedestrian bridge 
inspection report can be found as Attachment C.  


 
 
Economic Competitiveness  
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project supports the economic competitiveness of Southern 
Wisconsin in three significant ways. It will fuel the growth of the local, regional, and state economy by 







19 
 


adding millions of dollars of visitor spending, it help’s address the region’s need to attract and retain a 
workforce to grow its economy, and it improves property values adjacent to the site.  


Due to Stoughton’s proximity to Madison, Milwaukee, and Chicago, there is a large kayaking market. 
This is evident with the country’s largest paddling expo, Canoecopia, annually taking place in Madison. 
The University of Wisconsin – Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study (2018) examined 
10 other whitewater parks across the US, the study estimated an average of $68 per day spent on 
expenses including food, lodging, automotive, recreational equipment, clothing and supplies. Using the 
60-minute radius, and an assumption of 82,000 kayakers visiting the Stoughton whitewater park once 
per year, the study estimated an additional $5.6 million spent annually. The full details of the economic 
impact study are attached as Attachment D. 


Non-market economic benefits within this region could involve hedonic premiums placed on real estate 
values due to the presence of the additional 4.8 acres of parkland created by the project. These 
increased property values will provide capital appreciation for owners of land in Stoughton. The Impact 
of Parks on Property Values: A Review of the Empirical Evidence (2001) estimated that proximity to 
parks increased property values an average of 20%. Based on this, it is estimated that the value of TID 
District #8’s value would increase in value by $9,492,000. 


Lastly, the project will help attract and retain people to the region which is vital for the workforce. The 
2017 study completed by the University of Wisconsin-Madison and titled Gaining and Maintaining Young 
People in Wisconsin Communities concludes that there are five important qualities for retaining and 
attracting young people. One of these qualities was to provide outdoor amenities such as parks and 
trails, with appreciation for outdoor recreation.  


Environmental Sustainability.  
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project improves the environment in a number of ways.  


The dam removal and creation of the whitewater features will improve water quality and will reconnect 
the two stretches of the Yahara River. Fish passage is designed into the whitewater features which will 
allow fish species such as the northern pike to reach new spawning grounds. These changes will also 
improve the habitat for native species such as darters and smallmouth bass. The dam removal will also 
lower the water levels exposing contaminated sediments. The sediments will be remediated as part of 
the project. Full details of the contamination in the millpond can be found as Attachment E.   


Shorelines will be restored and naturalized, and the section of Mandt Parkway that runs parallel to the 
river will be removed. These changes will help reduce storm water runoff throughout the entire project 
area.  


The Redevelopment Area’s historical use was manufacturing and is considered a brownfield. The 
remediation is outside of the project scope for this grant application, but it will be remediated as part of 
the development process.   


Quality of Life 
The health benefits of outdoor recreation and activities are well documented. Among the benefits are 
increased physical activity and mental well-being. A recent study shows that older adults engage in over 
3.5 times more physical activity in parks with walking loops. The creation of the pedestrian trails and 
pedestrian bridges and whitewater improvements provide the public an opportunity to exercise for free.  







20 
 


A recent study by the American Heart Association estimates that getting the recommended dose of daily 
physical activity saves a person $2,5000 on health care costs annually. That translates to more than 
$$561,000 for the 82,000 projected uses of the whitewater park planned in downtown Stoughton as 
part of the Yahara Riverfront Development.  


 


Secondary Criteria 
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project aligns with the Secondary Criteria of Innovation, especially 
Innovative Financing and Partnership.  


Innovation 
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project is notably innovative for the significant public-private 
partnership with the City of Stoughton and the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority.  


Specific to the Yahara Riverfront Development Project, the funding is planned for 80% federal, 16% 
state, and 4% local. 


The Stoughton Redevelopment Authority secured a Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation Idle 
Sites grant in 2018 in the amount of $500,000. These funds are allocated for the use of the development 
of trail and shoreline restoration in the Redevelopment Area along with the pedestrian bridge 
connecting the Redevelopment Area to Mandt Park. The full details of the Idle Sites grant can be found 
as Attachment F.  


The City of Stoughton secured a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Stewardship Fund grant in 
2019 for the shoreline restoration and trail in the Redevelopment Area. Full details of the 2019 
Stewardship grant can be found as Attachment G.  


Additionally, once development starts in the Redevelopment Area, more than enough funds to cover the 
4% local allocated. These monies will be generated through park development fees that the developer 
will need to pay.  


Partnership 
The effort to implement the Yahara Riverfront Development is a textbook example of public-private 
partnership. An example of this is the creation of the steering committee for the project. Organizations 
represented include: 


• City of Stoughton 
• Dane County 
• Madison Sports Commission  
• Yahara Fishing Club 
• Stoughton Redevelopment Authority  


The resolution to create the steering committee is attached as Attachment H. 


Furthermore, the City of Stoughton and the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding where the City is responsible for the development of the trail, shoreline 
restoration, and the pedestrian bridge connecting the Redevelopment Area to Mandt Park. In return, 
the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority will transfer a 100 feet wide section of land adjacent to the 







21 
 


river for $1. This will create an approximately 1.5-acre park adjacent to the Yahara River. The 
memorandum of understanding can be found as Attachment I.  


6. Project Readiness  
Project Phases 
The overall Yahara Riverfront Development Project is broken down into three phases: 


• Phase I – Redevelopment Site Area & Pedestrian Bridges 
o Redevelopment Area Trail 
o Redevelopment Shoreline Restoration 
o Jefferson Street Pedestrian Bridge 
o Redevelopment Area to Mandt Park Pedestrian Bridge 
o 1.5 Acres of Parkland Creation   


 
• Phase II – Stoughton Dam & Riverside Park, & Stoughton Millpond Areas 


o Dam Removal 
o Whitewater Features 
o Tailrace and Headrace Plazas 
o Beach and Canoe/Kayak Launch 
o Millpond Restoration and Remediation 
o Millpond Trail 
o Fourth Street Underpass 
o 3.3 Acres of Parkland Creation  


   
• Phase III – Mandt Park  


o Mandt Park Shoreline Naturalization 
o Removal of Mandt Parkway parallel to the Yahara River 
o Two Parking Lots 
o Looped Trail System  
o Fishing Access Nodes  


Phase I  
Please note that the Jefferson Street pedestrian bridge is outside of the Redevelopment Area, but it was 
moved to this phase for economies of scale purposes. The project schedule for the Redevelopment Area 
trails and shoreline restoration, and pedestrian bridges follows.  


I. Initial Funding and Scope Development 
 
The City of Stoughton decided to move forward with the development of the pedestrian bridges, 
redevelopment area trail, and waterfront restoration during the 2019 budget process. Duration: 
9 months.  
 


II. 30% Preliminary Design  
 







22 
 


Develop design to a 30 percent level for permitting, budgeting, and funding. Gather detailed 
base information for the site including topographic survey, permitting delineations (as 
necessary), design drawings, quantities, engineer’s opinion of cost, and basis of design 
documentation. Estimated duration: 3 months. 
 


III. Preliminary Permitting Reviews  
 
Submit permit applications and conduct consultations. Likely permits include Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources Chapter 30 grading permit for the trail and bridges, Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources Bridge Individual Permit. Coordination with any applicable US 
Army Corp of Engineering permits is handle through the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources Chapter 30. Coordination with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources staff 
utilizing a HEC-RAS model showing “no rise condition. Engineers will evaluate stormwater 
quality requirements. This may be needed due to additional impervious surface from the trail. 
Estimated Duration: 2 months.  
 


IV. Authorization by Project Sponsors to Proceed.  


The design of the bridges, trail, and shoreline restoration will be approved by the Stoughton 
Redevelopment Authority, project steering committee, and the City of Stoughton. Estimated 
duration: 2 months.   


V. Final Design 


Final documents needed for bidding and construction. Include contract documents – bid 
documents, specification, technical specifications, and drawings. Estimated duration: 1 month.  


VI. Permitting  
 
Permitting to begin at approximately 60% design completion. Estimated duration: 1 month. 
 


VII. Bid Phase  
 
Acquire contractor bids, select contractor. Estimated duration: 2 months.  
 


VIII. Construction Phase  
 
Build the designed project, inspection, contract administration. Estimated duration: 4 months.  
 


IX. Operations and Maintenance  
 
Long-term management to maintain facilities, safety, and recreational performance. Transfer of 
the land from the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority to the City of Stoughton. Estimated 
duration: Ongoing. 


A flow chart of the Phase I project schedule can be found as Attachment J.  







23 
 


 


Phase II 
The project schedule for the dam removal, whitewater features, millpond restoration, and millpond trail 
follows.  


I. Initial Funding and Scope Development. 
 
The idea of a whitewater park was brought forth to City of Stoughton Parks Department staff on 
November 2016. Staff researched the concept and brought forth the funding a conceptual plan 
for the project. Research included a preliminary meeting with the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources Waterways Director and the Secretary Deputy. The Stoughton City Council 
approved hiring Recreation Engineering and Planning to complete a conceptual plan for the 
whitewater features in January 2018. Duration: 13 months 
 


II. Conceptual Design 
 
The Conceptual Design (Attachment K) was developed from January 2018 to May 2018 and 
culminated in a public presentation. An estimated crowd of 200 people attended the conceptual 
design presentation. Duration: 5 months 
   


III. Conceptual Design Permitting Review 
 
A permitting review meeting with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource Officials took 
place in May 2018 when Gary Lacy, owner of Recreation Engineering and Planning, was in 
Wisconsin to present the conceptual design. This meeting laid the groundwork for permitting 
guidance moving forward. Duration: 1 month 
  


IV. Authorization by Project Sponsors to Proceed 


Funds were budgeted by the City of Stoughton in 2019 for the 60% preliminary design work 
which included sediment sampling, bathymetric survey, hydraulic analysis, and updated 
whitewater park design plans. Duration: 12 months 


V. 60% Preliminary Design  
 
Interfluve was hired by the City of Stoughton in May 2019 to complete sediment sampling of the 
millpond and a bathymetric survey. They worked with Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resource officials over the next seven months to develop a sampling plan, conduct the 
sampling, and complete the report (Attachment E). The Wisconsin of Department of Natural 
Resources reviewed the report and provided a directive letter to the City of Stoughton 
(Attachment L) The letter provides direction on what needs to be done to remediate the 
contamination if the project moves forward.  
 
Recreation Engineering and Planning was hired by the City of Stoughton in May 2019 to 
continue to work on the whitewater features. The steering committee made a decision to move 







24 
 


forward with a dam removal design in August 2019. Recreation Engineering and Planning 
completed the preliminary design in January 2020. The process culminated in a public 
presentation in February 2020 with attendance of over 100 people. Duration: 9 months 
 


VI. 60% Preliminary Design Permitting Review  
 
City of Stoughton staff met with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource staff on October 31, 
2019 to review the sediment sampling results and a framework to move forward. This was later 
included in a directive letter. 
 
City of Stoughton staff along with engineers from Recreation Engineering and Planning met with 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource staff on October 21, 2019 to review the design and 
go over permitting. This was considered a pre-application meeting for a Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources Chapter 30 permit. Full details of the preliminary design can be found as 
Attachment M and the design’s hydraulic analysis can be found as Attachment N. 
 
City of Stoughton staff met with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource staff on February 
13, 2020 to review permitting for dam removal. Duration: 6 months 
 


VII. Authorization by Project Sponsors to Proceed  
 
The budget for the project changed due to the updated design. The City of Stoughton budget 
was amended on April 14, 2020 to include the changes. There are budgeted funds to start the 
final design in 2020. During this time the project steering committee will meet and gather data 
for revisions. Estimated duration: 4 months.  
 


VIII. Final Design 


Final documents needed for bidding and construction. Include contract documents – bid 
documents, specification, technical specifications, and drawings. Estimated duration: 18 
months. 


IX. Permitting  
 
Permitting discussion have begun with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Please 
see the “Environmental Approvals” section for a listing of required permits. Estimated duration: 
12 months. 
 


X. Bid Phase  
 
Acquire contractor bids and select contractor. Estimated duration: 3 months. 
 


XI. Construction Phase  
 
Build the designed project. Inspection, contract administration. Estimated duration: 18 months. 







25 
 


 
XII. Start-up and Tuning 


Observation of built project, refinement to optimize recreation and safety performance. 
Estimated duration: 6 months.  


XIII. Operations and Maintenance  
 
The City of Stoughton will be responsible for the long-term management and maintenance of 
the improvements. Estimate duration: Ongoing.  


 


 A flow chart of the Phase II project schedule can be found as Attachment O.  


 
 


Phase III 
The project schedule for the Mandt Park improvements follows.  


I. Initial Funding and Scope Development 
 
Funding for a master plan for Mandt Park was approved in 2018. The City hired MSA 
Professional Services to complete the plan and the development of the plan started in April 
2019. The development of the plan included multiple forms of public input, the development of 
three plan concepts, and a selected final design.  The master plan is scheduled to be adopted in 
June 2020. The Mandt Park Master Plan can be found as Attachment P.  
 


II. 30% Preliminary Design  
 
Develop design to a 30 percent level for permitting, budgeting, and funding. Gather detailed 
base information for the site including all utility data gathered and/or surveyed, complete a 
topographical survey including right-of-ways and easements, soil borings and geotechnical 
report, development of a specification outline, wetland delineation, verify site design against 
preliminary stormwater/utility design (review of utility crossings), preliminary pavement design, 
general earthwork and stormwater design, revise project phasing, consider construction 
sequencing, need for irrigation identified, and development of engineer’s opinion of cost. 
Estimated duration: 6 months 
 


III. Preliminary Permitting Reviews  


File a Notice of Intent Site Disturbance and Wetland Delineation with the Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources. Estimated duration: 6 months  


IV. Authorization by Project Sponsors to Proceed.  
 







26 
 


The design of the parking, trail, and shoreline restoration will be approved by the Stoughton 
Redevelopment Authority, project steering committee, and the City of Stoughton. Estimated 
duration: 6 months.   


V. Final Design 
 
Complete specifications, final plans (detail, section, stormwater facilities, utilities, etc.), 
materials detailed and specified, planting plan and details complete, irrigation plan complete, 
final cost estimate prepared, specifications complete.  Estimated duration: 6 months 
 


VI. Permitting  
 
Acquire permits from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and applicable local 
permits. Chapter 30 permit for shoreline restoration. Estimate duration: 1 month 
 


VII. Bid Phase  
 
Acquire contractor bids and select contractor. Estimated duration: 2 months. 
 


VIII. Construction Phase  
 
Build the designed project. Inspection, contract administration. Estimated duration: 13 months. 
 


IX. Operations and Maintenance  
 
The City of Stoughton will be responsible for the long-term management and maintenance of 
the improvements. Estimate duration: Ongoing.  
 


A flow chart of the Phase III project schedule can be found as Attachment Q.  


 


Demonstrates Feasibility of Expending Funds  
The project schedule demonstrates that all necessary activities will be complete to all BUILD 
Transportation grant funds to be obligated sufficiently in advance of the statutory deadline of 
September 30, 3022., and that any unexpected delays will not put the funds at risk of expiring before 
they are obligated; that the project can begin construction quickly upon obligation of grant funds and 
that those funds will be spent expeditiously once construction starts, with all funds expended by 
September 30, 3027; and that all real property acquisition will be completed in a timely manner in 
accordance with 49 CFR part 24, 23 CFR part 710, and other applicable legal requirements or a 
statement that no acquisition is necessary.  


Cost Estimates 
Cost estimates in the BUILD Grant application come from a number of sources.  







27 
 


The Phase I cost estimates were provided by Strand & Associates engineering firm based out of 
Madison, WI. They are a top five engineering firm in the region.  


Phase II cost estimates for the dam removal, whitewater features, and plazas were provided by 
Recreation Engineering and Planning. They are the preeminent engineering firm for whitewater parks. 
The cost estimates provided in the Preliminary Design Report (Attachment M) were revised due to the 
need to itemize the costs for state grant application requirements.    


Phase III cost estimates for the Mandt Park improvements were provided by MSA Professional Services 
and come from the Mandt Park Master Plan (Attachment P) 


Technical Feasibility 
The technical feasibility for the Yahara Riverfront Development Project, and particularly Phase 2 with 
the dam removal and whitewater features, has been demonstrated with the development of the 
Preliminary Design Report (Attachment M) of the whitewater features and the hydraulic analysis of 
project (Attachment N).  


The design criteria for the dam removal and whitewater features are rigorous and include: 


• Eliminate the hazard of the dam.  
• Improve flood mitigation 
• Improve fish passage  
• No increase to the base flood water surface elevations to obtain a FEMA “no-rise” certification 


Environmental Approvals 
All permits and approvals necessary for the project are anticipated to be received in a timely manner, 
enabling the project to proceed to construction outlined in the aforementioned project timelines, as 
well as meet the statutory obligation deadline for the BUILD grant. All local, state, and federal 
requirements, including the NEPA process will be satisfied. Below is a narrative of the different 
approvals and permits required for each phase of the project, and progress towards the them to this 
point.  


Phase I 
Required permits for this phase include a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Chapter 30 
grading permit for the trail, shoreline restoration, and pedestrian bridges. The pedestrian bridges will 
also require Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Bridge Individual Permit. Coordination with 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources staff with a HEC-RAS model showing a “no rise” condition 
for the floodplain. Engineers will evaluate stormwater quality requirements due to the additional 
impervious surface created by the trail. Any US Army Corp of Engineer (USACE) permitting/coordination 
is handled through the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources process. 


Local permitting may include an erosion control permit, stormwater permit, shoreland permitting, and 
floodplain.  


A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) will be required for any change to river elevations or changes to the 
floodplain.  







28 
 


Phase II 
The removal of the dam and the development of river features will require a US Army Corp of 
Engineering 404 Clean Waters Act permit for any wetlands impacted and channels identified as waters 
of the United States. Staff at the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources have communicated to 
City staff that the permitting process for 404 permits go through their office and is reviewed jointly with 
the USACE permitting process.  


During our meeting on October 24, 2019 with Department of Natural Resources staff which they 
considered it the required pre-application meeting they indicated to City staff that the permitting of the 
river features will fall under miscellaneous structures in the permitting process. The plans for the river 
features will need to include detailed cross sections and delineations. We will need to provide 
restoration plans for the project area as well.  


A State Historical Office investigation of cultural resources in the project area will be required as part of 
the USACE 404/401 permit process.  


The Stoughton Dam is a structure older than 50 years and eligible for listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places. Pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, the Army Corp of 
engineers must evaluate potential effects to the eligible property that may result from the proposed 
work. They have requested survey and field data, and archaeological reports.  


A wetland investigation and delineation will be required to identify if any wetlands exist within the 
project area prior to the USACE 404 permit process.  


Changes to the floodplain resulting from the proposed project will need to be analyzed. Floodplain 
impact reports will be provided to the appropriate local, state, and federal agencies for review.  


We have been working towards the permitting process with the completion of the preliminary design 
and hydraulic analysis for some project elements. The City of Stoughton applied for a Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources Municipal Dam Program Grant in 2020. An application for dam 
removal is part of the application process. The receipt acknowledging the application can be found as 
Attachment Q.  


The capping and restoration may fall under an Interim Action Report/Soil Management Plan, Wisconsin 
NR 718 Exemption Request, and a Cap Maintenance Plan will need to be completed. Post-construction 
monitoring and a post-construction report will need to be completed as part of the project.   


Other permits will be required prior to construction such as, but not limited to, a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SW3P) pursuant to NDPES, other State construction permits such as a Dewatering 
Discharge permit, and/or other State permit requirements.  


Phase III 
Required permits for this phase include a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Chapter 30 
grading permit for the trail and shoreline restoration. Engineers will evaluate stormwater quality 
requirements due to the additional impervious surface created by the trail and the removal of the 
Mandt Parkway.  







29 
 


Local permitting may include an erosion control permit, stormwater permit, shoreland permitting, and 
floodplain. The site conditions for this area require additional utility surveys due to the wastewater 
treatment plant located to the east of the park. 


Public Participation 
This project has been in the spotlight in the region due to the uniqueness of it and the dam removal 
aspect. The project has appeared in the media or discussed in a public meeting over 100 times and the 
list can be found as Attachment Q. 


7. Benefit-Cost Analysis   
This section outlines the costs and benefits of the Yahara Riverfront Development project to satisfy the 
requirements for the Better Utilizing Infrastructure to Leverage Development (BUILD) grant. The analysis 
considers the costs and benefits that would accumulate over a 30-year timeframe through the year 
2051. For additional details on the Benefit-Cost Analysis please see Benefit Cost Analysis (Attachment S) 
and BCA Workbook (Attachment T). 


 


Baseline Scenario 
The Baseline Scenario assumes that the Yahara Riverfront Development Project is not implemented. It 
assumes the Stoughton Dam in its current configuration is left in place.  


Under this scenario, the dam continues to present a safety hazard because boaters and people who 
accidentally fall in the water may get drawn into water flow through the dam and risk drowning or 
injury. The dam will continue to restrict flow of water through the Yahara watershed chain of lakes, 
which has experienced major flooding twice in the last 12 years. The dam will continue to require 
ongoing average maintenance costs of $61,400.  


The millpond will continue to collect sediment, diminish fish habitat and spawning grounds, and cover 
land that could be converted to parkland.  


Southern Wisconsin would also forgo the economic impact benefits, losing out on millions of dollars in 
spending that would otherwise be brought into the region. Southern Wisconsin falls behind in the “war 
for talent,” losing workforce to other cities that made investments in quality-of-life amenities. And 
existing residents of Southern Wisconsin would lose out on the quality of life amenities themselves, with 
fewer outdoor recreation opportunities, less exposure to nature, and poorer water quality.  


 


Alternative Scenario  
The Alternative Scenario assumes that the Yahara Riverfront Project is implemented. It assumes that the 
Stoughton Dam is removed and replaced with a whitewater park that includes a five drop crest features 
for novice paddlers and a standing wave for surfing, fish passage, canoe and kayak launches, a multi-use 
pedestrian trail linking the area to the regional Lower Yahara Trail. Dam removal will increase water flow 
and reduce the risk of flooding.  







30 
 


Under the alternative scenario the millpond will be replaced with a river connected to fish spawning 
grounds. Soil on the newly exposed riverbank will be remediated of contamination and native plantings 
will be placed in the area creating 3.3 acres of parkland and an unsafe and aging pedestrian bridge will 
be replaced. 


The alternative scenario includes creation of a 1.5-acre riverfront park in front of the downtown 
redevelopment site, enhancing property values and increasing appeal of the area to developers. In 
addition, Mandt Park, across the river from the redevelopment area, will be improved with shoreline 
restoration and naturalization, new parking areas, and a multi-use pedestrian trail loop that will 
connect, via a new pedestrian bridge over the river, to the downtown riverfront and regional trail 
system. 


 


NPV Avoided Safety Costs 7% $5,832,249 
NPV Economic Benefits 7% $85,349,225 
NPV Quality of Life Benefits 7% $6,969,461 
NPV Parkland Added Value Benefits $789,885 
NPV Alternative Scenario O&M Costs $179,843 
NPV Flood Control Benefits  
NPV Environmental Benefits 7%  
  
Totals  
NPV at 7% $99,120,664 
Initial Project Cost $7,316,479 
NPV of O&M Costs @ 7% $179,843 
Total Project Costs $7,496,322 
Cost-Benefit Ratio @ 7% 13.22 


 


Parkland Increase 
The Yahara Riverfront Development will increase parkland available to residents of Stoughton and 
beyond by 4.8 acres. According to a Park Impact Fee study, the Average Park Value per acres is 
$197,277.  


Safety 
The alternative scenario includes removing the Stoughton Dam. The Stoughton Dam was responsible for 
a near drowning in 2018, and the next dam downstream of the Stoughton Dam, the Dunkirk Dam, was 
responsible for a drowning in 1996. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources provided the City 
of Stoughton a directive letter in 2020 that the Stoughton Dam could be removed to improve public 
safety. 


Economic Competitiveness 
The Yahara Riverfront Development Project supports the economic competitiveness of Southern 
Wisconsin in two significant ways. It will fuel the growth of the regional and state economy by adding 
millions of dollars of visitor spending, and it helps address the region’s need to attract and retain a 
workforce to grow its economy.  







31 
 


The economic benefits associated with the Yahara Riverfront Development project used data developed 
through the University of Wisconsin-Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study 
(September 2018).  This study focused on direct spending, estimating visitation and visitor spending 
from kayakers within 30, 60 and 120 minutes of Stoughton. Within three hours of Stoughton, there is a 
total population of nearly 6 million with estimates of this including nearly 434,000 kayakers and over 1 
million canoeing enthusiast.  


Based on recent studies that examined 10 other whitewater parks across the US, the study estimated an 
average of $68 per day spent on expenses including food, lodging, automotive, recreational equipment, 
clothing and supplies. Using the 60-minute radius, and an assumption of 82,000 kayakers visiting the 
Stoughton whitewater park once per year, the study estimated an additional $5.6 million spent 
annually.  This NPV of the economic benefits of the project are estimated at $85.3 million.   


Quality of Life 
The health benefits of outdoor recreation and activities are well documented. Among the benefits are 
the “sunshine vitamin,” aka Vitamin D; more exercise, especially for children; happier people, notably 
when their exercise takes place near nature; and improved concentration, as noted in “Last Child in the 
Woods” by Richard Louv. 


There are many quality-of-life benefits that are difficult to quantify. This analysis focused on health care 
costs savings related to increase physical activity generated by the project. A recent study by the 
America Heart Association estimates that getting the recommended dose of daily physical activity saves 
a person $2,500 on health care costs annually. This means that each day of physical activity equates to 
$6.85 in health care costs saving. Based on user projections generated through the University of 
Wisconsin-Madison/Cooperative Extension Economic Impact Study, it is estimated that 82,000 users 
engage in the active recreation options available in this project. 


Based on these calculations it was determined that the NPV of the quality of life benefits is 
approximately $7.0 million.   


Property Value Increase 
Properties adjacent to parks and greenspace typically have higher values because they provide ready 
access to outdoor amenities. The Impact of Parks on Property Values: A Review of the Empirical 
Evidence (2001) estimated that proximity to parks increased property values an average of 20%.  


Stoughton’s Tax Increment District #8 Plan (July 2018) estimates an added value of $47,459,000 from 
buildout of the concept plan for the TID. The TID Plan did not factor parkland enhancements from the 
more recently prepared Yahara Waterfront Redevelopment plan (Alternative Scenario) in its estimates 
of additional assessed value. The Alternative Scenario would increase the TID estimated value by an 
estimated 20%, or $9,492,000.  


Flood Control  
The removal of the Stoughton Dam will cause the waterway to lower 2.6 feet in the millpond area. This 
will cause an additional 61,000 cubic yards of flood storage in the area. Additionally, the Stoughton Dam 
constricts flow in the Yahara River. The removal of the dam will create a freer flowing system with no 
constriction. In 2018, Dane County experienced record rainfalls which caused subsequent flooding. Dane 
County officials estimated the damage at $154 million. 







32 
 


Environmental Benefits 
The Yahara Riverfront Development will improve the health of the Yahara River. The shoreline 
naturalization will mitigate runoff into the river, the removal of the dam and whitewater improvements 
will improve water quality. The whitewater amenities also provide for fish passage where fish can now 
reach new spawning grounds. 


 


 





		1. Project Description

		Project History

		Plan Alignment





		2. Project Location

		All Sites

		Redevelopment Area

		Mandt Park

		Stoughton Dam and Riverside Park

		Stoughton Millpond

		Water Trail

		Regional Trail



		3. Project Parties

		4. Grant Funds, Sources, and Use of Project Funding

		5. Merit Criteria

		Primary Criteria

		Safety

		State of Good Repair

		Economic Competitiveness

		Environmental Sustainability.

		Quality of Life



		Secondary Criteria

		Innovation

		Partnership





		6. Project Readiness

		Project Phases

		Phase I

		Phase II

		Phase III



		Demonstrates Feasibility of Expending Funds

		Cost Estimates

		Technical Feasibility

		Environmental Approvals

		Phase I

		Phase II

		Phase III



		Public Participation



		7. Benefit-Cost Analysis

		Baseline Scenario

		Alternative Scenario

		Parkland Increase

		Safety

		Economic Competitiveness

		Quality of Life

		Property Value Increase

		Flood Control

		Environmental Benefits







